
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 

 
ON WEDNESDAY 21 MARCH 2018 AT 3.00 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
WEDNESDAY 21 MARCH 2018

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of Meeting held on 21st February 2018   

 
5 - 18 

2   Questions to the South Central Area Manager   
 

19 - 24 

3   Housing Matters 
Response to submitted questions 
 

 

4   Roads & Traffic Matters 
a) Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group held on the 27th February 2018 in 

relation to the Traffic Matters in the South Central Area. 
b) Traffic Service Requests Status Report at the 15th February 2018. 

 

25 - 40 

5   South Central Area Matters 
a) Presentation on the Liberty Business Forum 
b) Naming and numbering proposal for a new development on a site at the 

rear of 486 Bluebell Avenue, Bluebell, Dublin 12. 
c) Naming and numbering proposal for a new development at a site at 

Kylemore Road and the Old Naas Road, Bluebell, Dublin 12. 
d) Gully Cleaning Programme Report for the South Central Area. 
e) Area Manager’s Report. 

 

41 - 70 

6   Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 
a) Public Library Events for March 2018 – South Central Area 
b) Sports and Recreation Report for March 2018 – South Central Area. 

 

71 - 84 

7   Planning and Economic Development Matters 
a) Proposed disposal of the Council’s fee simple interest in a site at Davitt 

Road close to intersection with Benbulbin Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8. 
b) Proposed disposal of a plot of land at Sarsfield Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 

10, to CIE. 
 

85 - 92 

8   Emergency Motions   
 

 

9   March 2018 Motions 
 

 



 

DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

21
st

 March 2018 
 

578 Councillor Greg Kelly 
This Area Committee expresses its anger at Irish Water, who have left 
constituents in the Dublin 8 and Dublin 10 area without water after the 
recent bad weather. While Irish Water announced water pressure 
reduction we have seen areas been left without any water at all. This we 
know is due to the lack of investment in the water infrastructure over the 
years. If, as called for by the hundreds of thousands of people who 
marched against Irish Water, the millions of Euro had been spent on the 
ageing Dublin water pipes, instead of consultants and water meters, we 
would not have seen people without water at this time. We call on Irish 
Water to outline to this Area Committee its plan to upgrade the water 
infrastructure in the whole Dublin South Central Area, and we ask for full 
details of works and a timeline. 
 

579 Councillor Paul Hand 
That this Area Committee commends all the staff and volunteers in the 
Orchard Centre in Cherry Orchard who provided homeless 
accommodation and a community outreach service over the recent bad 
weather. To this end  we request that this motion be sent to the Lord 
Mayor's office and for all staff and volunteers to receive a civic award for 
their selfless dedication in helping others. 

 
580 Councillor Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee supports the call from De La Salle GAA club for a 
GAA pitch in the Cherry Orchard area as part of the Local Area Plans for 
Cherry Orchard. 
 

581 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
For many years I have sought without success the introduction of a 
refundable deposit scheme on all plastic bottles, beverage cans, soft 
drinks cans etc.  I am asking that Dublin City Council lobby aggressively 
the Department of Environment Housing & Local Government for the 
introduction of such a scheme here, similar to Germany, Denmark etc. 
who levy 25 cents, which is refundable when you return the empty bottles, 
cans etc. Only last week I counted 27 bottles, cans etc. along Le Fanu 
Road, Ballyfermot, between Kylemore Road and Grange Cross. Our 
football pitches are destroyed with beer bottles as there is no value put on 
the bottles, hence, they are just thrown away.  A deposit would sort this 
problem out once and for all. The plastic bag levy was instrumental in 
cleaning up so much of our communities when a charge was levied. This 
is exactly what we need in Ireland to deter litter louts. 
 

582 Councillor Daithi Doolan and Councillor Greg Kelly 
This Area Committee notes with thanks the huge effort made by Dublin 
City Council staff, emergency services and community activists during the 
recent Storm Emma. We especially thank those involved who kept the 
Orchard Centre open to provide food, shelter and warmth to homeless and 
vulnerable people.  
 
 
 
 

 



 

583 Councillor Daithi Doolan and Councillor Greg Kelly 
This Area Committee expresses frustration at the delay in development of 
the Corna Mona site and in the refurbishment of the Jamestown Court site. 
We urge all those involved to ensure both sites are developed without 
further delay. 
 

584 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
That this Area Committee, in supporting the regeneration of the Liberties 
area and welcoming the improvement works on Francis Street, request 
that a feasibility study be carried out on the future for Meath Street. This 
street has a proud history but of late has been neglected and dereliction is 
an issue. The local community want to make Meath Street great again and 
are organising a proactive working group to ensure the street gets the 
much needed make over and support. 

 

 
 

10   February Questions and Answers   
 

93 - 112 

 





1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 21 FEBRUARY 2018 

 
 

 
1   Minutes of Meeting held on 17th January 2018 

Order: Agreed.    
 

 

2   Questions to the South Central Area Manager 
Order: Replies to Questions and the Area Manager’s report circulated. 
 

 

3   South Central Area Matters 
a) Presentation from the New Children’s Hospital – Project Update 
b) Report on the Community Grants Scheme 2017 
c) Report on the 2018 Discretionary Funds   
d) Naming and numbering proposal for a new development at a site at 

Kylemore Road and Old Naas Road, Bluebell, Dublin 12. 
e) Naming & Numbering Proposal for a new development at site at 

Chapelizod Hill Road, Chapelizod, Dublin 20. 
f) Request for 2 nominations to the Bluebell Community Council 
g) Gully Cleaning Programme Report for the South Central Area. 
h) South Central Traffic Works Report for 2018 
i) Area Manager’s Report. 
Order:    a) Presentation given by John Pollock, Project Director,  
  Ingrid McElroy Community Benefits Programme  
                  Manager and Eilish Hardiman, CEO Children’s Hospital  
                  Group. The Presentation was recorded by Wildfire  
                  Films who are making a documentary on the  
                  progression of new Hospital to full completion which is  
                  anticipated to take approximately 4 years.   
                  Presentation noted. 

b)  Agreed. Recommend to Council. 
c)  Agreed. The members agreed to provide a Christmas   
     tree in the Drimnagh area from any monies unspent  
     from the 2018 Discretionary Fund. In the event that no  
     monies are available from the 2018 Fund the members  
     agreed that the project would be charged against the  
     2019 Discretionary Fund. 
d)  Deferred until the March Meeting. 
e)  Agreed 
f)   The following nominees were selected: - Councillor  
      Greg Kelly and Councillor Paul Hand. 
g)  Report noted. 
h)  Verbal report noted. 
i)   A report was given and was noted by the Members, 
(see attachment). 

5 - 14 

Page 5



2 
 

 
4   Roads & Traffic Matters 

a) Minutes of Traffic Advisory Group held on the 30th January 
2018 in relation to Traffic Matters in the South Central Area. 

b)  Traffic Status report at 15/1/18 
        Order: a) Report noted.    

              b) Report noted. 
 

 

5   Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 
a) Public Library Events for February 2018 – South Central Area.      
b) Sports and Recreation Report for Febraury 2018 – South Central 

Area. 
 Order: a) Report noted.    
             b) Report noted. 

 

 

6   Planning and Economic Development Matters 
a) Proposed disposal of a site at 1-2 Rafters Lane, Crumlin, Dublin 12 

to Walkinstown Housing Association CLG 
          Order:   Agreed.   Recommend to Council. The disposal is  
   conditional on confirmation and certification being  
   received that the Japanese Knotweed be entirely  
   eradicated from the site. 

 

 

7   Emergency Motions 
Order: None Received 
 

 

8   February 2018 Motions 
 
569 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh & Councillor Ray McHugh 

That this Area Committee supports the Canalway Educate Together, 
Basin Lane, Dublin 8’s campaign for additional and much needed funding 
for additional accommodation, upgrading of toilets, heating and windows. 
And call on the Minister for Education to meet with the parents and 
principle to hear their case. 
Order: Agreed without debate.   
 

570 Councillor Cllr. Hazel de Nortúin 
This Council notes the 100th anniversary of granting (some) women the 
vote as a result of their heroic struggle for the suffrage. 
 
It also notes how little progress has been made as regards women's 
participation in politics since the days when Countess Markievicz was the 
first woman elected to the British Parliament.  This Council recognises that 
the barriers to women's political participation are both ideological and 
material - particularly with no maternity or childcare support.   

 

This Area Committee therefore supports the call for an urgent programme 
of action to counteract this blatant inequality and a solution to the practice 
of deducting pay for absence from Council meetings as a result of 
pregnancy, and connected health issues or child care emergencies. 
Order: Agreed without debate.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 6



3 
 

571 Councillor Cllr. Tina Mac Veigh 
This Area Committee agrees to meet with residents in Blackpitts to ensure 
priority will be given to a number of maintenance requests for roads, 
footpaths and the public domain. 
Order: Agreed without debate.  Councillor to submit details. 

 
 
572 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

In noting the potential of the proposed Cherry Orchard LAP, this Area 
Committee calls on Dublin City Council Planning Department to fully 
engage with residents, community groups, services and statutory agencies 
during the process. This will ensure the community is central to any final 
agreed plan. 
Order: Agreed without debate.   

 
573 Councillor Pat Dunne & Cllr. Paul Hand  

This Area Committee notes the successful usage of Pay as you Go 
Environmental Waste Compaction systems in a number of Local Authority 
areas outside Dublin. These compactors allow for householders to legally 
dispose of bagged household waste at convenient locations such as 
garage forecourts, supermarket car parks and civic bring centres.  The 
compactors have separate sections for brown, green and black bag waste. 
The provision of these pay as you go compactors gives an alternative 
method of disposing of waste without having to pay an annual service 
charge to a kerbside waste collection company. This system is particularly 
of interest to those households who do not generate significant amounts of 
waste. We ask our Waste Management Services to consider a pilot 
scheme for this system in a current Bring Centre in the Dublin South 
Central.  
Order: The Motion was amended to include reference to all Bring 
Centres in the South Central Area. Amended Motion Agreed. Report 
to Councillors.   

 
574 Councillor Cllr.  Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee notes the HSE commitment to provide the best 
primary health care service for the community of Drimnagh, and that we 
recognise as councillors that the current Primary Health Care Centre is not 
up to the standard to provide this. We call on the relevant body whether 
this is HSE Estates or the Department of Health, and in turn the Minister, 
to make the funds available for the Curlew Road Primary Health Care 
Centre in Drimnagh. We ask the relevant body to outline to the councillors 
for Ballyfermot/Drimnagh ward what funding will be made available, when 
this funding will be made available, what work will take place and a 
timeline of when work will take place? 
Order: Agreed without debate.   
 

575 Councillor Cllr. Paul Hand 
That this Area Committee requests that Dublin City Council immediately 
cease all contracts with Aramark in providing catering and other services 
to Dublin City Council.  
Order: Agreed. Report to Councillors. The Councillor to submit to 
Area Manager the reasons behind the Motion. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



4 
 

576 Councillor Cllr. Tina Mac Veigh 
This Area Committee agrees that residents in Rialto will be included in the 
development of the Linear Park along James Walk. 
Order: Agreed without debate.   

 
577  Councillor Cllr.  Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee calls on Dublin City Council to install defibrillators in 
all DCC Library's and provide training for the staff. DCC have already been 
proactive in getting defibrillators in DCC buildings but our Library’s are 
lacking. 
Order: Agreed without debate.   

 
9   January Questions and Answers 

Order: Listed.   
 

 

 
Councillor Greg Kelly 
Chairperson 
Wednesday 21 February 2018 
 
 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Greg Kelly (Chairperson) Daithi Doolan Rebecca Moynihan 
Michael Mullooly Hazel De Nortuin Vincent Jackson 
Tina McVeigh Ray McHugh Paul Hand 
Criona Ni Dhalaigh Pat Dunne  
 
   
 
Officers   
Vincent Norton, Area Manager, South Central Area; 
Bruce Phillips, Senior Executive Officer, South Central Area 
Kay Noonan Cork, Acting Senior Executive Officer, South Central Area; 
Chris Butler, Area Housing Manager, Crumlin Area Office; 
Niall O’Neill, Graduate Engineer, Traffic Management & Control;  
David Healy, Administrative Officer, south Central Area 
Tony Smithers, Acting Housing Manager, South West Inner City; 
Scott Watson,  Community Officer, Ballyfermot/Drimnagh;  
Mary Noonan, Acting Community Development Officer, South West Inner City; 
Martha Mahon, Assistant Staff Officer, South Central Office; 
Cora Roche, Assistant Staff Officer, South Central Area; 
Cathriona Woulfe, Senior Staff Officer, South Central Office. 

  

 

Page 8



1 
 

 

Area Manager’s Report 

South Central Area Committee 

Wednesday 21st February 2018 

 

 
Housing Queries 
Reminder to e-mail your Housing Queries to scac@dublincity.ie by Friday the 2nd of 
March so that the Executive Manager for Housing will have a response for them at the 
March Area Committee Meeting. 
 
Neighbourhood Traffic Study Workshop 
The Neighbourhood Traffic Study Workshop is scheduled for the 21st of March, 2018. 
The venue and agenda will be announced at a later date. 
 
HSE announces Merchants Quay Project CLG as preferred operator of Ireland’s first 
Medically Supervised Injecting Facility 
The HSE confirmed on the 16th of February that Merchants Quay Project CLG is the 
preferred bidder to operate a Medically Supervised Injecting Facility in Dublin City Centre on 
a pilot basis. The awarding of the contract follows a HSE procurement process initiated last 
August and is subject to normal planning permission approval. An evaluation group 
established to review the tenders included HSE Procurement, HSE Social Inclusion, an 
Academic Expert, An Garda Siochana, Dublin City Council and an external Public Health 
expert.  It is envisaged that the preferred bidder will operate the facility for an 18 month 
period, by means of a License to be granted under the Misuse of Drugs (Supervised 
Injection Facilities) Act 2017.  
  
A key element in the success of the pilot will be a demonstration of consultation and ongoing 
engagement with local stakeholders from the surrounding area. Merchants Quay Project will 
be required to have in place a specific plan in this regard and will be required to employ a 
Community Liaison Worker to engage local businesses, communities and residents in a 
meaningful manner. An external evaluation of the pilot phase of the facility will be carried out 
by an independent agent engaged by the HSE. Specific structures will be put in place to 
ensure comprehensive operational, clinical and supervisory governance 
arrangements. These will include a Monitoring Committee comprising key stakeholders to 
oversee the facility chaired by Dr Eamon Keenan, National Clinical Lead, HSE Addiction 
Services on behalf of the HSE. A Clinical Governance committee will be established to 
ensure the facility is providing appropriate clinical intervention to attendees and that these 
interventions are in line with international best practice. The facility will also be required to 
comply with the National Standards for Safer Better Healthcare. As the HSE is required to 
adhere to appropriate procurement protocols, a 14-day standstill will now be observed prior 
to formal award.   
 
Report on the Iveagh Market 
Solicitors for the developer have responded to recent correspondence issued to them 
requesting the developer to hand back possession of the Iveagh Market to Dublin City 
Council.  This is currently being reviewed by the Law Agent who will advise on how the 
Council should proceed in this matter. 
 
Park West – Cherry Orchard Local Area Plan 
Update 20th February 2018 
The following is an update for the South Central Area Committee on the preparation of the 
Park West – Cherry Orchard Local Area Plan from the Planning and Property Development 
Department.  

Page 5

Minute Item 3

Page 9

mailto:scac@dublincity.ie


2 
 

 
Dublin City Council (DCC) is preparing a Local Area Plan (LAP) for Park West – Cherry 
Orchard. The preparation of an LAP is identified as an objective of the current Dublin City 
Development Plan 2016-2022 (Table F).  
The Issues Paper (i.e. pre-draft local area plan) public consultation was launched on the 12th 
February 2018 with the publication of a public notice and the Issues Paper document. The 
consultation period extends from Monday 12th February until Friday 16th March inclusive.  
A display was provided in the Civic Offices in Wood Quay, the Civic Offices in Ballyfermot (in 
the atrium and also in the reception of the Area Office) and the Orchard Community 
Development Centre. The South Central Councillors were circulated with a copy of the 
Issues Paper and the statutory notice. A range of pertinent stakeholders including social and 
community groups, schools and sport clubs were notified (with assistance from the Area 
Office). The Issues Paper and details on how to make a submission were posted on the 
Dublin City Council website. Use was also made of the DCC social media accounts 
(facebook and twitter) to help to notify members of the public. Posters on the consultation 
process were erected in fifteen locations throughout Park West and Cherry Orchard: - 
 

HSE primary care centre Familibase  

Cherry Orchard Hospital  Energia gym Park West 

Church of the Most Holy Sacrament  Spar – Park West 

St. Ultans’ National School  DCC Sports & Leisure Centre, Ballyfermot  

Orchard Community Centre Cherry Orchard Equine Centre 

DCC Ballyfermot Area office The Partnership office at the Equine Centre 

Library  St. Oliver’s Education Centre 

Post Office/ Centra, Claddagh   

 
Members of the Planning Department will be available locally in the area to assist with any 
queries on the following public consultation dates: - 
Monday, 26th February:  The Orchard Community Development Centre, 2-3.30pm 
Friday, 2nd March:   Unit 11, The Plaza, Park West Business Park, 12-2pm 
Saturday, 3rd March:  Cherry Orchard FC, Elmdale, 10–11am   
                                               Cherry Orchard Equine Centre, 12-1pm  
Wednesday, 7th March:   The Orchard Community Development Centre, 7.30-8.30pm 
 
Where possible these sessions have been teamed with local events to provide maximum 
exposure and community input.  
In addition to the above, a press release has been provided to The Echo Ballyfermot to 
provide newspaper coverage on this process, due for publication on the 22nd February in 
advance of the public consultation sessions.  
Furthermore members of the Planning Department are continuing to meet with various 
statutory and service agencies involved in the area, incl. The Irish Prison Service, the Health 
Service Executive (HSE), the National Transport Authority (NTA), South Dublin County 
Council. Further consultations will be planned for the area including youth consultation.  
Members of the Council will be kept updated throughout this process.   
 
Housing with Support Model at St Michael’s  
The Housing Department has been progressing a partnership approach with the HSE on 
development of the site adjacent to the Richmond Barracks to provide a Housing with 
Support model of accommodation for older people. The intention is that the accommodation, 
the facilities and the support will be such as to enable people to continue to live 
independently in their homes as long as possible, reducing the need to move into residential 
care where possible or for as long as possible. The proposals is to construct 52 units of 
accommodation where the one bed units are considerably larger than the standard to 
facilitate people remaining in their homes independently as long as possible.  

Page 6Page 10



3 
 

 
An expression of interest was sought from Approved Housing Bodies and Circle/Alone were 
successful. They prepared a stage one application which has now been approved by the 
Department so they have been instructed to proceed to stage 2. The Housing Department 
met with them to discuss a programme for moving forward and one of the elements will be 
consultation and communication with local interested parties. Meetings will be organised in 
the area over the next few months so will be in contact with you in this regards. 
 
Weaver Park nominated for a European Prize for Urban Public Space 
Weaver Park, built as a green space in the heart of the Liberties, has been nominated for a 
for a European Prize for Urban Public Space, which is an awards initiative run by the Centre 
of Contemporary Culture of Barcelona (CCCB). Nominees are chosen through the CCCB’s 
board of experts selecting recently completed public areas in Europe that “foster the public 
character of urban spaces and their capacity for fostering social cohesion”. The prize, in 
highlighting the relational and civic aspects of the typically urban space, thus differs from 
other initiatives that are focused on the figure of the architect, and from awards given for 
landscape-centred projects. 
 
The Living City Initiative (LCI) 
The Living City Initiative (LCI) is a tax incentive scheme to assist and encourage people to 
live in the historic inner city areas of Dublin City. It allows owners and investors to claim tax 
relief for money spent on refurbishment and/or conversion of residential property either as 
income tax relief (for owner occupied residential) or a capital allowance (for rented 
residential). It also focuses on the regeneration of retail and commercial districts by allowing 
owners to claim an accelerated capital allowance on money spent on refurbishment and/or 
conversion of commercial property.  
 
It aims to incentivise owners/investors to carry out the necessary refurbishment and/or 
conversion works to upgrade existing accommodation or bring derelict/disused properties 
back into use. Examples include bringing vacant upper floors above shop into 
residential/office use or carrying out refurbishment work to your home. A property can be a 
house, apartment, shop or any kind of structure and can include all or part of a property. 
 
The LCI Unit has setup a ‘One Stop Shop’ Advisory Team from Planning, Architects, Fire 
Prevention, Building Control, Conservation, Valuers and other relevant Departments. 
The Team is available to meet and provide advice on statutory planning and development 
requirements in relation to proposed refurbishment and/or conversion work before works 
begin. It is a FREE service, but an appointment must be made in advance by contacting the 
Living City Initiative Unit at: - 
 
Living City Initiative (LCI) Unit, 
Dublin City Council, 
Planning & Property Development Department, 
Block 4, Floor 3, 
Civic Offices, Wood Quay, 
Dublin 8 
livingcityinitiative@dublincity.ie 
Tel. No. 222 3480 
 

Page 7Page 11

http://www.publicspace.org/en/page/what-is-it
http://www.publicspace.org/en/page/what-is-it


4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8Page 12



5 
 

 
CRUMLIN/KIMMAGE ELECTORAL AREA 
 
South West Inner City Area Report 
 
St. Audeon’s Park, High Street 
Works to enhance St. Audeon’s Park by improving accessibility, permeability and circulation 
commenced in October 2017 and are due to be completed in April/May. The reconfigured 
western entrance will incorporate a play garden. 
 
Crane Street/Sugar House Lane 
Works, including the widening of the existing footpaths and the narrowing of the 
carriageway, to enhance pedestrian access along this important and busy tourist route 
commenced on 21st August 2017 and are due to be completed this month. 
  
Dolphins Barn 
Following agreement at the January Area Committee meeting it is expected that a Part 8 
Planning Application for a Public Realm Improvement Plan for Dolphins Barn will be 
advertised shortly. 
 
St. Luke’s Church 
Works in relation to the conservation and adaptive reuse of St. Luke’s Church as office 
accommodation are now complete. The City Council is creating a small urban park in the 
north graveyard (facing St. Luke’s Avenue) and carrying out improvements to the south 
graveyard (access via Newmarket Square). Works to both graveyards commenced in June 
and are due to be completed late this month or early next month. It is planned that the park 
facing St. Luke’s Avenue will operate with normal park opening hours whilst the south 
graveyard can be visited by appointment. It is proposed that the park(s) will be officially 
opened in May when the planting has properly bedded. It is also intended to initiate a ‘green 
school’ project with St. Brigid’s NS. 
 
James Street CBS 
Works to install a 5-a-side all-weather football pitch (49.6m x 23.4m) in the grounds of 
James Street CBS commenced in December and should be completed later this month. This 
facility will provide a much needed resource for the school, local sports clubs and the wider 
community. The pitch will be part funded from the 2016 Discretionary Fund. 
 
Marrowbone Lane Flats 
Work has been completed to landscape the front areas of Marrowbone Lane Buildings. The 
project included clearing of the areas, removing dead trees and stumps, planting a new 
evergreen hedge, 15 no. trees and smaller planter areas. A portion of the front area has 
been left clear to facilitate a residents’ garden. The project was support-funded by the 
Discretionary Fund 2018. 
 
Shopfront Improvement Scheme 2018 
Applications are currently invited for the Shopfront Improvement Scheme 2018 for The 
Liberties. It is hoped to support 15 projects this year and build on the success of recent 
years. An extension of the scheme to Dolphins Barn will be progressed later in spring. 
 
Crane Street 
A major programme of work to repave Crane Street and adjoining streets has been 
completed. The project involved widening footpaths on both sides of the street, laying new 
street surfaces, lifting and relaying antique paving, kerbs and setts to best conservation 
practice and renewing some services. Parking along the street has now been removed to 

Page 9Page 13



6 
 

facilitate a more pedestrian friendly environment. The work was undertaken by KN Networks 
for Dublin City Council Roads Department. 
 
 
Crumlin/Kimmage Area Report 

Crumlin Village 
A contractor has been selected to upgrade the public domain of the east side of Crumlin 
Village from the junction with Windmill Road to St. Agnes Park, i.e. between an Post Sorting 
Office and the Garda Station. It is expected that work will commence on 13th March with a 
completion date of late July. 

The works will include: 

 The replacement of the existing footpath with  cobble lock and slabs similar to the                                       
       West side of the road  

 The removal of the overhead electrical cables and replacement of existing lamp post  
      with posts similar to those that were installed on the opposite footpath in 2008. 

 Provision of an automated pedestrian crossing at the Crumlin Village/Windmill Road  
      junction. 

 Provision of cycle lanes and bicycle stands 

 Additional tree planting 

 Revised car parking 
 
 
Community Report 
Dublin City Council Community and Social Development team continue to support local 
community and voluntary groups who host and organise activities, engage in projects that 
can be of benefit to their communities and those who visit the area. 
 
Love Your Heart/Love Your Heal 
A number of organisations joined  together in St. Andrew’s Community Centre to offer advice 
and  health checks, fencing demonstrations, indoor rowing, along with a  host of holistic  
treatments to the wider community.  This free event sponsored by DCC and hosted by Rialto 
Development Association with a view to introducing people to engage in a healthier lifestyle: 
14/02/18   
 
Sing for Fun Community Choir:  
The Community Development team, Dublin’s Culture Connects & The Misa Centre St. 
James's Hospital welcome the new choir for the over 50’s to the MISA St. James’s. Singers 
from the Rialto, Crumlin, Dolphin's Barn and patients and relatives attending the Mercer 
Institute for Successful Ageing under the guidance of Choirmaster Norah Walsh could be 
heard along the corridors of the MISA, St James’s Hospital. 
The choir takes place every Monday morning from 10.30 am - 12.00 noon in February and 
March.  :  10.30hr 
 
Liberties Swift Conservation Programme: 
In line with Dublin City Council’s Biodiversity Plan, the South Central Community 
Development team have been delivering Swift Conservation educational programmes to 
local schools. They have also formed links with local building contractors/developers with a 
view to installing internal nest boxes in new developments. Swifts have been very much a 
part of the heritage of the Liberties for hundreds of years but sadly due to the demolition and 
renovation of older buildings traditional nest sites have been destroyed and the swift 
populations  is now in serious decline.  

Page 10Page 14



7 
 

There is a lot that can be done to reverse this trend and one builder in Francis Street has led 
the way by installing a triple cavity nest box into a recent new development.  
  
Information Day: In conjunction with the 60th anniversary of Donore Credit Union,                  
the Community team will hold an information day in Donore Youth and Community Centre to 
highlight and promote the services and community groups /clubs operating in the south 
central area, with a view to raising awareness of their services and bust membership:  
3 rd March 2018 
 
 
International Women’s Day:  
The Back of the Pipes will host an event in St. Andrews Centre to celebrate women’s 
achievements in history.  SCA Historian in residence Cathy Scuffil will give a talk on this 
interesting subject: 08/03/18 at 19.00 pm  
 
Residents of Dolphin House will host an event celebrating the achievements of women 
locally, nationally and internationally. This event will reach out to the wider community of 
Rialto and Dolphins Barn: 08/03/18 
  
 Historian in residence Cathy Scuffil will deliver a talk on women in politics at a coffee 
morning in Basin Lane community rooms: 09/03/18  at 10.30 am 
 
 Health Talks: The Marie Keating Foundation will deliver talks to students from St. James 
Secondary School & Warrenmount   Secondary   to raise awareness of cancer:     
  
Relocation of the statue of St Teresa’s:  
The statue of St Teresa has been removed from the flat complex for repair. 
It is planned to host a family event when the repairs are completed and   the relocation of the 
statue of St Teresa to a temporary location for the duration of the regeneration process:   
 
Growing Without Soil: Continuing on from the pilot programme of 2017 St. James CBS and 
St James Primary schools will both start projects growing plants  and food without soil using 
the method of Hydroponics: 26/02/18 
 
Crumlin/Kimmage Area Report 
    
Crumlin Walkinstown Local Forum  
Will host an Open Day on Saturday 24th February 2018 in hall of Scoil Una Naofa, Armagh 
Road, Crumlin from 11.00 – 3pm.  Local community groups from Crumlin & Walkinstown be 
will promoting their club/activities that are available open to all.   
 
Brookfield Estate 
Dublin City Council continue to support residents who are actively involved in enhancing the 
area through clean ups and welcome the first of the spring bulbs which are now starting to 
bloom  
 
Blarney Park allotments 
Renewal License Dublin City Council Community team have met with allotment holders and 
members of community garden with regard to renewal of   licenses for 2018. 
 
A number of information workshops will take place by The Community Garden holders to 
inform the wider community on the best way to development their garden spaces,  
Dublin City Council will continue to support the group in 2018. 
It is also planned to source and install a solar powered water pump at Blarney Park. 
 

Page 11Page 15



8 
 

 
BALLYFERMOT/DRIMNAGH ELECTORAL AREA 
 
Kilmainham Inchicore Network  
 
Progress with the 2018 Discretionary Funding allocations to projects within Inchicore and Kilmainham 
is ongoing.  The projects include: Inchicore Village Environmental Improvements €25k; Inchicore 
Shop Front Improvement Scheme €5k; Turvey Park Improvements €10k; Virtual Heritage 
Interpretation Panels €14k;  ”The Dead” heritage walking trail €10k;  Trees in the Ground  Project 
€10k; Christmas Lighting Inchicore Village €12.5k. 

 
-Childcare Professional Group Inchicore – Dr. Katherine Zappone Minister of DCYA will visit lower 
Inchicore – provisional date end of March 2018.   This follows on from an earlier meeting with DCYA 
officials and a Report on this localised unique area within Inchicore that suffers greatly from 
intergenerational poverty, high levels of disadvantage with underprivileged vulnerable children’s 
needs not being met. 
 
-A sense of Place – Past Present and Future Kilmainham and Inchicore– A second series of 
Talks organised by KIN, DCC Historian in residence and Kilmainham Gaol are under discussion 
-KIN submitted observation letter to the OPW re Part 9 Planning Application Ref 4653/17: Garda 
Security and Crime Operations Centre, Military Road, Dublin 8. SAW Protected Structure.  
 
-Improvements to Inchicore Village – consideration is being given to the level of derelict buildings in 
the Village; proposals for increased street furniture, removal/upgrading of the recycling bins and how 
to deal with graffiti.   
 
-The Camac Greenway – A review of this project is taking place including all previous plans and 
proposal.  Discussions on how to progress this project are underway.  

 
Bluebell 
A very positive meeting was held on 24th January at which the user clubs were informed of 
following timetable for the installation of a new 4g full size floodlit all-weather pitch to replace 
the grass pitch adjacent to the Bluebell Youth and Community Centre: - 

 Tenders to be invited February 

 Contractor expected on site April/May 

 Works to be completed and pitch open for use late Autumn    
 
Drimnagh 
Parks and Landscape Services intend to carry out renewal works to Brickfields Park 
Playground from 12th February 2018 for a period of 4 weeks.  Part or all of the facility will 
need to be closed to the public during this time. Works will include repair to the ground 
surface and the refurbishment of existing play units.  Some new pieces will be added 
including a pedal roundabout and a new multi-use climbing unit with slide.  Four carved 
wooden animal totems will also be included. Signage will be erected at the entrance to the 
playground to notify the public of proposed works. These works are part funded from the 
 
 
Community Report 
 
International Women’s Day 2018 
The Ballyfermot Local Drugs Task force is co-ordinating a series of events through out 
Ballyfermot to mark International Women’s Day. The City Council is organising a Women’s 
walk. The event starts at 7:00 PM at the church of the Assumption on Wednesday the 7th of 
March. Refreshment will be served in the Ballyfermot Family Resource Centre at 8pm. The 
walk will be a carefully planned route around the Ballyfermot area.  
 

Page 12Page 16



9 
 

The Ballyfermot Youth Service will launch the Celebrating Women in Ballyfermot and Ireland 
on Thurs. March 8th at 5:30PM in the Ballyfermot Library. The exhibition and the event is part 
funded by Dublin City Council Decade of Commemorations fund. 
 
The City Council are supporting Drimnagh Ladies Club to host an evening of music on 
Tuesday 6th March at 8:00pm to Mark the day.  
 
Remembrance afternoon tea in Walkinstown 
The Council  is hosting afternoon tea in WSAF community hall on Moeran Road in 
Walkinstown for the elderly lady’s groups in the area. 
 
Environmental Committees 
The City Council is rolling out an ambitious environmental project across the Ballyfermot 
/Drimnagh Area to create activity around National Tree Week, March 4th – 11th and An 
Taisce’s National Spring Clean week which will be held throughout the month of April. 
The Council will be contacting all Resident and Community Groups to encourage them to 
take part in events to improve their local environment.  Meetings have been held with the 
Drimnagh Tidy Towns Committee, the Bluebell Environment Group and staff are working to 
re establish the Ballyfermot Environment group. 
 
Ballyfermot 70th Celebrations 
There was standing room only at the screening of the locally produced film Ballyfermot in the 
beginning which was held in the Library. The film is available for screenings to groups and 
organisations in the area. 7oth year Celebration Banners have been erected on the light 
stands along the main street in Ballyfermot. The City Council Historian in Residence is 
working with groups regarding a History on Your Doorstep initiative and to organise a series 
of talks which will be held in the Ballyfermot Library in June. 
 
Older Peoples complexes 
Fr. Lemass Court: - The City Council is working with the residents in Fr. Lemass Court to 
prepare and plant window boxes for every resident with a view to entering this years City 
Neighbourhood. A workshop and planting session will be held for all residents who wish to 
take part.  
 
The Council is carrying out small repair works and refurbishment of the Claddagh Court, 
River View, Rossaveal and La Touché communal rooms. 
 
La Touché Court: - The City Council is working with the Oblates Community Employment 
Scheme regarding the provision of meals on wheels from LA Touché Court. The group is in 
discussion with the HSE regarding the future viability of this service. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
  

Page 13Page 17



10 
 

 

Page 14Page 18



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

17th January 2018 
 

Q1 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Q2 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  
 

Q3 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Q4 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 

 
Q5 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager to address the issues in (details supplied) 
 

Q6 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager if there is a time line set out for the physical improvement 
scheme (details supplied). 
 

Q7 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to consider the following idea (details supplied). 
 

Q8 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to answer the following questions in relation to dog fouling 
issues in the Dublin South Central area. 
 
a)       What legal powers if any does a Dog Warden have when dealing with a dog  

owner who has allowed his dog to foul a public place? 
b)       How many Dog Wardens are employed by Dublin City Council in the area as  

opposed to the other area’s? 
c)      What other grades of staff are authorised to tackle dog fouling? 
d)       How many dog fouling bins are there in the area in both the  

Crumlin/Kimmage wards and the Ballyfermot/Drimnagh ward. Would it be 
possible to identify their locations? 

e)       What is the cost of installing a dog fouling bin? 
 

Q9 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to report if there are any of our playgrounds in the Dublin 
South Central area that have wheelchair friendly swings or other such play 
equipment? I did request that such a swing would be installed in the new Weaver 
Park in Dublin 8. 
 

Q10 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for a cut back to the tree outside (details 
supplied). 
 

Q11 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
In light of the recent poor weather the road surface on Ballyfermot Road from Cherry 
Orchard Hospital to Sarsfield Road needs urgent repairs. I am well aware the full re-
instatement of the surface is very expensive, however, as the road carries nearly 

Page 19



12,000 traffic movements on a daily basis it is something which needs to be done. 
Can the Area Manager indicate what DCC propose to do to sort out the problems? 
 

Q12 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to request that Dublin City Council look at the possibility of 
establishing a branch library in the Drimnagh Area at Our Lady’s Hospital, when the 
hospital eventually closes.  A small portion of these lands could make the dream of 
many in the Drimnagh area become a reality.  The Drimnagh area suffers due to its 
proximity to Crumlin.  However, the area has a population of over 12,000 people, 
bigger that most rural towns, but without the infrastructure. 
 

Q13 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to request that Dublin City Council look at doing a flower 
planting scheme at the Church of the Assumption Roundabout, Kylemore / 
Ballyfermot Roads, as part of its acknowledgments of the Ballyfermot 70 
celebrations. This area is a key location in Ballyfermot and could do with an uplift. 
 

Q14 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to request that all various measures be introduced to 
ensure children and adults alike can safely walk across roads in the Chapelizod 
Area.  The current situation outside the St. Patrick’s School and the Mullingar House 
is a failure on DCC to erect proper signage to deter people breaking lights etc.  
Coming from the City Centre and travelling up towards Knockmaroon is very 
confusing. You have a green light, however traffic coming from the southside of the 
Liffey have the same green light.  This madness needs addressing before we have a 
serious accident and then we will address this issue. 
 

Q15 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that in view of the serious illegal development at (details 
supplied), that Dublin City Council ensure the full rigors of the law be applied in this 
situation and that under no circumstances can an order for retention be entertained 
on this occasion, as it will call the whole planning system into question. 
 

Q16 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to request that the meeting with Ballyfermot Traders in 
January last be followed up with another meeting in April, with an update on the 
various issues raised in relation to planning, cleansing, parking etc, and how we 
could promote a business forum on a regular basis to meet say 3 to 4 times with 
cleansing and the Area Manager in attendance.  
 

Q17 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager can I be provided with a list of those awaiting housing for 
Area J to include time on the list, medical / welfare or homeless, family size and 
allocations made over the past 2 years? 
 

Q18 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
Can the Area Manager please bring forward a plan for the Dublin City Council owned 
(details supplied).  The site has had lots of excellent plans drawn up over the years, 
however they came to nothing.  I am anxious the visual aspect of this derelict site 
does nothing for Chapelizod. 

 
Q19 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please indicate if we are ever able to catch any of those 
responsible for illegal dumping along Tyrconnell Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8.  Every 
other day various areas, particularly under trees facing the Oblates Church, are 

Page 20



festooned with illegal waste and again at Kilmainham Cross.  Bags are regularly left 
here.  A few DCC owned mobile cameras like local authorities in the UK use would 
help deter this practice. 
 

Q20 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
With the pending closure of the De La Salle Primary School, Ballyfermot Road, and 
the student enlargement of the Dominican Primary School Campus of St Michael’s, 
St Gabriel’s and St Raphael’s Schools, can Dublin City Council look at the chronic 
traffic situation here every morning with double parking, footpath parking, parking in 
the adjoining Convent Lawns etc. I recently met residents living in Convent Lawns 
who have told me it is impossible to get in and out of their homes. I am more worried 
there will be a serious accident here due to non adherence on any parking rules etc. I 
am hoping DCC can come up with some possible solutions. 

 
Q21 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Q22 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q23 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q24 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager, (details supplied). 
 
Q25 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager, (details supplied). 
 
Q26 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager, (details supplied). 
 
Q27 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager, (details supplied). 
 
Q28 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager, (details supplied). 
 
Q29 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager, (details supplied). 
 
Q30 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the dampness at our property (details 
supplied) to be examined and addressed.  

 
Q31 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 

Q32 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager what if any financial assistance can be given to (details 
supplied) 

 
Q33 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 

Page 21



Q34 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 

 
Q35 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Q36 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Q37 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Q38 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Q39 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Q40 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)  
 
Q41 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q42 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  
 
Q43 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  
 

 Q44 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  

 
Q45 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager if there is a timeline for when the necessary improvement 
works outside St. Patrick's National School, Chapelizod will take place? 

 
Q46 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager if the road in Camac Park, Bluebell can be repaired and 
repaved as a matter of urgency. I requested for this to take place some years ago 
and it never happened. 

 
Q47 Councillor Pat Dunne 
 To ask the Area Manager to investigate when Rutland Avenue is due to have its 
 trees trimmed.  I previously raised the issue and was told they would be trimmed to 
 allow for more light for pedestrians.  I am aware that the nesting season starts 
 back again at the end of the month so time is of the essence if this job is to be 
 done. (details supplied) 
 
Q48 Councillor Pat Dunne 
 To ask the Area Manager to ask our Housing Maintenance Section to have the 
 following issues attended to at our tenant’s home, (details supplied.) 
 
 
 

Page 22



Q49 Councillor Pat Dunne 
 To ask the Area Manager to ask our Housing Maintenance Section to have the 
 following issues attended to at our tenant’s home (details supplied). 
  
Q50 Councillor Pat Dunne 
 To ask the Area Manager to ask our Housing Maintenance Section to have the 
 following issues attended to at our tenant’s home (details supplied). 
 
Q51 Councillor Pat Dunne 
 To ask the Area Manager to ask our Housing Maintenance Section to have the 
 following issues attended to at our tenant’s home (details supplied). 
 
Q52 Councillor Pat Dunne 
 To ask the Area Manager what precautions were made to ensure the safety of our 
 tenants in Older Persons complexes, both before, during and after the recent snow 
 storm?  Where snow and ice accumulated at entrances and on balconies, was it 
 cleared quickly? There are reports of residents been blocked in for days in the 
 Lorcan O’Toole complex in Kimmage. 
 
Q53 Councillor Pat Dunne 
 To ask the Area Manager to provide a list of current voids, with bedroom sizes, 
 including acquisitions in Area’s K and L showing if they are with the depot or 
 contractors and the expected time for them to be completed and available for 
 allocation. 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 23





SthCntrlMar18AreaAgendaFinal

South Central March 

Area Agenda 

21/03/18 (TAG Date: 

27/02/18)
Item Confirm 

Ref

Sharepoint 

Ref

Request Road Post-

code

Topic Request Description Request

by

Date Rec'd TAG Result TAG Comments sec

1 7001526 Yellow Box EMMET ROAD 

(SC)

Dublin 8 Yellow 

Box

Install a yellow box junction. Member 

of the 

Public

31/01/2018 Recommended During a site visit the area engineer 

found it very difficult to exit on to 

Emmet Road from Kilmainham Bank. 

They would be in favour of installing a 

 Yellow box at this junction.

Stat – Install a Yellow box starting 

5.8m west from LS20 stretching in a 

westerly direction for 4m. Covering 

the north half of the carriageway.

0

2 90045524 SP_21016 Traffic 

Calming

INCHICORE 

TERRACE 

SOUTH (SC)

Dublin 8 Traffic 

Calming

on the road. Councill

or

23/10/2015 Not 

Recommended

After a site visit the area engineer 

would not recommend installing 

additional traffic calming measures as 

there are already three ramps 

installed on Inchicore Terrace South 

which is 270m in length.This along 

with on street parking would be 

considered more than adequate to 

keep the speed in the estate low as 

the on street parking acts as a natural 

traffic calming measure.

0

3 90046801 SP_35622 Bus 

markings

SOUTH 

CIRCULAR 

ROAD (SC/SE)

Dublin 8 Bus 

Lane 

(Change 

of hours)

For extension of the 

operational hours, 

eastbound on the approach 

to Leonard’s Corner.  

Member 

of the 

Public

20/12/2016 Recommended After a site visit the area engineer 

would recommend that the hours of 

this bus lane need to be changed to 

cover 07.00 to 19.00hrs Mon – Sat. 

The bus is currently experiencing 

delays at this stretch of the road from 

cars parking after 10am.

0

4 90050731 SP_39629 Disabled 

Parking 

Bay

JOHN STREET 

SOUTH (SC)

Dublin 8 Disab 

Park Bay 

Resident

ial

 a bay outside No. 54. Member 

of the 

Public

10/08/2017 Recommended Disabled parking bay proposed on 

the southern side of John Street 

South from the western boundary of 

No. 54 extending eastwards for 6 

metres.

0

5 90051895 SP_40809 Disabled 

Parking 

Bay

O'DONOVAN 

ROAD (SC)

Dublin 8 Disab 

Park Bay 

Resident

ial

outside No. 9. Member 

of the 

Public

12/10/2017 Recommended Disabled Parking Bay, north side, 

from the common boundary between 

No.'s 8/9 O'Donovan Road, extending 

westwards for 6 metres.

0

Page 1 of 1

P
age 25





 

1 

 

Traffic Service Requests,  

Status Report at 15/02/2018  

South Central Committee Meeting 21/03/2018 
 

 

 

 

 

Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 

Explanation of Stages: 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, etc 

Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request 
Statistics 

 

    

 
 

  
No. TAG Requests received since previous 
report  

NA 

  
Total TAG Requests currently open on 
Confirm 

196 

  

 
 

  
Breakdown of TAG Requests currently 
open on Confirm   

  Stage 1 25 

  Stage 2 111 

  Stage 3 5 

  Stage 4 38 

  Stage 5 17 

  

 
 

  General traffic service requests not 
requiring Statutory Orders. 
 

 

  
 
  

  Total Non-TAG Requests currently received 
and open on Confirm. 

143 

P
age 27



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

1 7000540  PIM STREET (SC) TAG Default Request for introduction of Pay & 
display 

1 23/11/2017 

2 7000653  SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

TAG Default Paid parking in the area of 480-
490 South Circular Road. 
Residents are finding it hard to 
find parking with the Rialto centre, 
Community centres and local 
shops. 

1 29/11/2017 

3 7000666  SUNDRIVE ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

TAG Default Cycle track on Sundrive Road 1 29/11/2017 

4 7000679  AIDEEN AVENUE (SE) TAG Default Request for pedestrian crossing at 
junction 

1 29/11/2017 

5 7000683  TURVEY AVENUE (SC) TAG Default Looking for a stop sign that goes 
out onto Emmett Road 

1 30/11/2017 

6 7001142  HERBERTON DRIVE 
(SC) 

TAG Default mini roundabout at intersection 1 09/01/2018 

7 7001200  BROWN STREET 
NORTH (C) 

TAG Default DYLS corners entrance to 
Tenterfields Estate 

1 11/01/2018 

8 7001223  BALLYFERMOT ROAD 
(SC) 

TAG Default Outside Borza's takeaway, at the 
exit to the main road. 

1 15/01/2018 

9 7001238  ARMAGH ROAD (SC) TAG Default Disabled parking space across the 
road or near Scoli Una Naofa 

1 16/01/2018 

10 7001295  TENTERFIELDS (SC) TAG Default Request for dyls at junction 1 18/01/2018 

11 7001457  LUCAN ROAD (SC) TAG Default Request for additional filter light 1 26/01/2018 

12 7001474  SUNDRIVE ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

TAG Default Road markings request at the 
junction of Sundrive 
Road/Kimmage Road Lower 

1 29/01/2018 

13 7001522  THOMAS STREET (SC) TAG Default Extend Clearway hours on section 
leading up to Luas tracks 

1 31/01/2018 

14 7001528  GRAND CANAL QUAY 
(SE) 

TAG Default Cycle track along road 1 01/02/2018 

15 7001529  JAMES'S STREET (SC) TAG Default Extend cycle lane towards luas 
tracks 

1 01/02/2018 

16 7001530  JAMES'S STREET (SC) TAG Default extned hours of clearway cars 
constantly blocking cycle lane 

1 01/02/2018 

17 7001544  BALFE ROAD EAST (SC) TAG Default replace yield sign with stop sign at 
junction 

1 02/02/2018 

18 7001637  STANNAWAY ROAD 
(SC) 

TAG Default DYLS on corner of above roads 1 09/02/2018 

P
age 28



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

19 7001643  KYLEMORE PARK 
NORTH (SC) 

TAG Default Double yellow lines outside 
Henkel Ireland Operations and 
Research Ltd. 

1 09/02/2018 

20 7001644  CLIFDEN ROAD (SC) TAG Default Bus Cage 1 09/02/2018 

21 7001686  SAINT AUGUSTINE 
STREET (SC) 

TAG Default removal of parking spaces outside 
Schoolhouse Building 

1 14/02/2018 

22 7001695  CRANE STREET (SC) TAG Default 3 tonne ban 1 14/02/2018 

23 90044631 SP_8233 KILMAINHAM LANE (SC) Disab Park Bay Resid 
(Rescind) 

complaint regarding disability 
parking space on kilmainham 
lane. 

1 06/08/2013 

24 90049816 SP_38699 GREENVILLE AVENUE 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Park (Extend 
Area) 

Request to extend area outside 5 
Greenville Avenue to include two 
parking spaces. 

1 14/06/2017 

25 90050861 SP_39761 CATHERINE STREET 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Park (Extend 
Area) 

 request for alteration of P&D and 
Permit Parking 

1 18/08/2017 

26 7000087  KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) TAG General Engineer 
Query 

Cycle Lane at Mc Donalds leading 
up to traffic lights 

2 27/10/2017 

27 7000151  DRIMNAGH ROAD (SC) Bus Lane Extend the outbound bus lane on 
Drimnagh Road from Balfe Road 
through the junction with 
Walkinstown Road to tie in with 
the existing bus lane on the Nass 
Road. 

2 03/11/2017 

28 7000152  WALKINSTOWN ROAD 
(SC) 

Bus Lane Extend the inbound bus lane on 
Walkinstown Road to the stop line 
at the junction with the Drimnagh 
Road. 

2 03/11/2017 

29 7000382  BLARNEY PARK (SC) TAG Default Speed ramps to be lowered or 
removed outside No.47 

2 14/11/2017 

30 7000450  BRIDGEFOOT STREET 
(SC) 

Yellow Box On Bridgefoot Street at the 
junction of Marshal Lane. 

2 20/11/2017 

31 7000451  MARSHAL LANE (SC) Double Yellow Lines at the footpath dishing on Marshal 
Lane. 

2 20/11/2017 

32 7000473  ROSSMORE AVENUE 
(SC) 

School Keep Clear outside 49, Training college 2 20/11/2017 

33 7000477  SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

TAG Default Right filter light at the junction of 
SCR and the Royal Hospital. Turn 
from South Circular Road onto 
High Road, Kilmainham. 

2 21/11/2017 

34 7000570  CHAPELIZOD ROAD 
(SC) 

Cycle Track Cycle track on inbound footpath 
across form Chapelizod Church. 

2 24/11/2017 

P
age 29



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

35 7000682  TURVEY AVENUE (SC) TAG Default Speed ramps needed 2 30/11/2017 

36 7000738  LANDEN ROAD (SC) No Right Turn (Amend) amend 'no right turn'  from 
Kylemore Rd onto Landen Rd to 
operate during peak times only. 

2 04/12/2017 

37 7000929  LAMB ALLEY (SC) TAG Default Double yellow lines to be 
completed on Lamb Alley 

2 15/12/2017 

38 7001085  CAMERON SQUARE 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

39 7001086  NEW IRELAND ROAD 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

40 7001087  UPPER CROSS ROAD 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introducation of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

41 7001088  PORTMAHON DRIVE 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

42 7001090  HERBERTON ROAD 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

43 7001091  HERBERTON PARK (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

44 7001092  RIALTO STREET (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

45 7001093  RIALTO COTTAGES 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

46 7001094  HAROLDVILLE AVENUE 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

47 7001095  MALLIN AVENUE (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

48 7001096  CLARKE'S TERRACE 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 2 05/01/2018 

49 7001119  KILDARE ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay 
Residential 

outside No. 14. 2 08/01/2018 

50 7001212  LONG MILE ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay General o/s pharmacy (no.6?); same block 
as Long Mile Inn. 

2 12/01/2018 

51 90044607 SP_7126 PARNELL ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

Pedestrian Crossing On all sides of junction at Donore 
Ave / Clogher Rd.  ***4 
CHILDREN SR 15817, 29412, 
33355, 33667 **** 

2 10/05/2013 

52 90044613 SP_7464 DOLPHIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing At the junction of Herberton Road 
and Dolphin Rd.               ****6 
CHILDREN SRs  9960, 12388, 
15760, 15815, 16389, 19139, **** 

2 30/05/2013 

53 90044662 SP_9452 JAMES'S STREET (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Wrap around crossing for junction 
with Bow Lane West, Steeven's 
Lane.  ***CHILD SR 9881**** 

2 12/11/2013 

P
age 30



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

54 90044748 SP_12252 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST 
(SC) 

Add Pedestrian Phase On the traffic lights at the junction 
of Shelton Drive. ***1 CHILD SR 
17817*** 

2 12/05/2014 

55 90044764 SP_12560 WALKINSTOWN ROAD 
(SC) 

Cycle Track On Walkinstown Road. 2 23/05/2014 

56 90044766 SP_12589 NAAS ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing on the east side of the junction of 
Walkinstown Avenue  

2 27/05/2014 

57 90044786 SP_12965 HERBERTON ROAD 
(SC) 

Cycle Track The cycletrack surrounding the 
Rialto roundabout means you 
have to mount the footpath which 
is not well marked ***1 CHILD 
RECORD SR13642**** 

2 30/06/2014 

58 90044799 SP_13515 GOLDENBRIDGE WALK 
(SC) 

Cycle Track Could you please update me on 
the time frame for the cycle path 
from Blackhorse down to Harold's 
Cross? Is this still going ahead 
and is the funding secured for 
this?  Can you indicate via a map 
of the route? 
  
One reason I ask is that the road 
surface on Goldenbridge Walk is 
in a terrible condition.  I've been 
raising this for some time and 
some works have taken place but 
the condition of the road is unsafe 
and unacceptable. 
  

2 05/08/2014 

59 90044813 SP_13907 FRANCIS STREET (SC) Cycle Track Two-way cycle lane or lanes 
on both sides of the street 
  

2 08/09/2014 

60 90044929 SP_15816 DOLPHIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Dolphin’s Barn 
and Parnell Road, to cross the 
bridge. 

2 16/12/2014 

61 90044963 SP_16301 BULFIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of South Circular 
Road. 

2 23/01/2015 

62 90045089 SP_17648 SUIR ROAD (SC) Cycle Track Wants improvements done to 
cycle lanes along Grand Canal at 
Herberton Bridge and Suir 
Road/James st 

2 17/04/2015 

63 90045178 SP_18446 SEAN HEUSTON 
BRIDGE (C/SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian Crossing or Zebra 
Crossing at the south end of Sean 

2 02/06/2015 

P
age 31



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

Heuston Bridge. 

64 90045229 SP_18891 WEAVER'S SQUARE 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking on the road. 2 25/06/2015 

65 90045241 SP_18987 CAPTAIN'S ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing pedestrian lights and slow down 
signs for junction of Captains 
Road / Stannaway Rd 

2 02/07/2015 

66 90045323 SP_19687 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Pedestrian Crossing between Bulfin road and 
Brookfield Road 
  

2 17/08/2015 

67 90045401 SP_20202 CHERRY ORCHARD 
AVENUE (SC) 

Traffic Calming in the general Cherry Orchard 
Area. (A number of roads include 
the Cherry Orchard area). 

2 16/09/2015 

68 90045468 SP_20623 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing on Kimmage Cross Roads at 
junction of Kimmage Road West 
and Terenure Road. 

2 07/10/2015 

69 90045511 SP_20953 ERRIGAL ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction with Drimnagh 
road, outside the Ronald 
McDonald House 

2 21/10/2015 

70 90045525 SP_21017 INCHICORE SQUARE 
SOUTH (SC) 

3.5 Tonne Limit on the road. 2 23/10/2015 

71 90045527 SP_21026 INCHICORE TERRACE 
SOUTH (SC) 

3.5 Tonne Limit on the road. 2 27/10/2015 

72 90045530 SP_21048 GRANITE TERRACE 
(SC) 

Traffic Calming on the road. 2 27/10/2015 

73 90045537 SP_21078 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing at slip road onto Kimmage Road 
West 

2 28/10/2015 

74 90045541 SP_21087 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD 
WEST (SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing Crossing between Hueston 
Station and the Heuston Luas 
Bridge. 

2 29/10/2015 

75 90045579 SP_27667 CHERRY ORCHARD 
AVENUE (SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing at junction of Blackditch Rd and 
Cherry Orchard Ave. 

2 09/11/2015 

76 90045581 SP_27675 CLIFDEN DRIVE (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Clifden Road, 
Clifden Drive, Cherry Orchard 
Drive. 

2 09/11/2015 

77 90045595 SP_27776 LE FANU ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Kylemore Road 
at Kylemore College. 

2 12/11/2015 

78 90045673 SP_28279 CHERRY ORCHARD 
AVENUE (SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing outside St Ultan's School. 2 04/12/2015 

79 90045674 SP_28287 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Yellow Box at the junction of Bluebell Avenue. 2 04/12/2015 

P
age 32



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

80 90045695 SP_28401 RAVENSDALE PARK 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Kimmage Road 
Lower. 

2 09/12/2015 

81 90045765 SP_28871 CLOGHER ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

No Parking Restrict parking on Clogher Rd, 
o/s St. Kevin's College. 

2 14/01/2016 

82 90045775 SP_28940 KIMMAGE ROAD 
LOWER (SC/SE) 

Cycle Track request for cycle track clearway to 
be changed to 24hr city 
bound instead of 3 hr as cars 
constantly parked in it. 

2 18/01/2016 

83 90045788 SP_29031 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

No Right Turn (Rescind) from SCR onto Clanbrassil St 
Upper.  
  

2 22/01/2016 

84 90045795 SP_29073 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD 
WEST (SC) 

Bus Lane Request to widen bus lane by 0.5 
metres 

2 25/01/2016 

85 90045887 SP_29748 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Long Mile Road. 2 17/02/2016 

86 90045988 SP_30368 PARNELL ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

Cycle Track Query concerning planning 
process for cycle tracks on Grand 
Canal banks. 

2 21/03/2016 

87 90046020 SP_30593 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Naas Road. 2 06/04/2016 

88 90046144 SP_31277 CLOGHER ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

Cycle Track Request for cycle track to be 
added to above road as customer 
cycles on this road and likes 
 safety of a cycle track and 
smooth surface. 

2 11/05/2016 

89 90046178 SP_31551 CON COLBERT ROAD 
(SC) 

School Ahead Sign School Ahead or School Crossing 
sign requested at junction for 
Ballyfermot 
  

2 25/05/2016 

90 90046227 SP_31978 PIMLICO (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit on the street 2 15/06/2016 

91 90046399 SP_33356 SLIEVENAMON ROAD 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Dolphin Road 
and Grand Canal View. 

2 23/08/2016 

92 90046516 SP_34083 WINDMILL ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing or double yellow lines outside the 
Swimming Pool 

2 30/09/2016 

93 90046652 SP_34827 DRIMNAGH ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the new Costa/Centra/Boots. 2 07/11/2016 

94 90046705 SP_35198 BASIN VIEW (SC) Disab Park Bay General outside the Educate Together 
National School 

2 22/11/2016 

95 90046713 SP_35250 LA TOUCHE ROAD (SC) No Parking around LUAS station (people 
parking all day at shops to get on 
Luas) 

2 24/11/2016 

96 90046740 SP_35376 PARK WEST ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing near junction w/ Lavery Ave. 2 07/12/2016 

P
age 33



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

97 90047487 SP_36341 DUBLIN CITY Cycle Track request for cycle lanes 
  
also Ballyfermot Road 

2 03/02/2017 

98 90047618 SP_36472 BASIN STREET LOWER 
(SC) 

Cycle Track request for cycle lane on Basin 
View 

2 09/02/2017 

99 90048109 SP_36968 LE FANU ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Colepark Drive. 2 10/03/2017 

100 90048110 SP_36969 CHAPELIZOD HILL 
ROAD (SC) 

Add Pedestrian Phase at the junction of Chapelizod Hill 
Road/Kylemore Road/Le Fanu 
Road. 

2 10/03/2017 

101 90048157 SP_37017 MARROWBONE LANE 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing adjacent to St. Catherines Sports 
Centre and DCC Road 
Maintenance paving depot. 

2 15/03/2017 

102 90048270 SP_37132 BRAITHWAITE STREET 
(SC) 

No Parking on Braithwaite Street & Summer 
Street South. 

2 22/03/2017 

103 90048337 SP_37200 BASIN VIEW (SC) No Parking request for parking prohibitions 
Basin St./ View  
  
  

2 27/03/2017 

104 90048386 SP_37249 SAINT LUKE'S AVENUE 
(SC) 

Bus Stop Marking on the road 2 29/03/2017 

105 90048435 SP_37298 OSCAR SQUARE (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of Scheme on the 
road. 

2 03/04/2017 

106 90048446 SP_37309 SAINT MICHAELS 
TERRACE (SC) 

Disab Park Bay 
Residential 

outside No. 15, St. Michael's 
Terrace, Blackpitts. 

2 03/04/2017 

107 90048570 SP_37433 BRIDGE STREET 
LOWER (SC) 

Add Pedestrian Phase Full wrap-around 2 07/04/2017 

108 90048715 SP_37582 GRATTAN CRESCENT 
(SC) 

School Warden Request for school warden 
outside Inchicore National School 

2 19/04/2017 

109 90048716 SP_37583 GRATTAN CRESCENT 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing, Inchicore 
National School, Grattan Crescent 

2 19/04/2017 

110 90048743 SP_37610 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Clearway (Rescind) review clearway wide enough to 
accommodate parking without 
impacting traffic flow 

2 21/04/2017 

111 90048801 SP_37669 STANNAWAY ROAD 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian or Zebra Crossing 
across Stannaway Road at the 
Sundrive Road junction. 

2 25/04/2017 

112 90048829 SP_37698 CHAPELIZOD ROAD 
(SC) 

Traffic Calming Between The Bridge Inn and 
Mullingar House. 

2 26/04/2017 

113 90048834 SP_37703 CHAPELIZOD ROAD 
(SC) 

Cycle Track request for more cycle lanes 2 26/04/2017 

P
age 34



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

114 90048856 SP_37725 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing No pedestrian on Kylemore Rd 
south of Bluebell Avenue, 
pedestrians have to walk further 
up Kylemore Rd in order to cross 
safely 

2 27/04/2017 

115 90049028 SP_37899 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

P&D Parking outside the shops on the Dolphins 
Barn junction 

2 08/05/2017 

116 90049050 SP_37921 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing on all legs of the junction. 2 08/05/2017 

117 90049051 SP_37922 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing on the west leg of the junction. 2 08/05/2017 

118 90049155 SP_38028 CHAPELIZOD ROAD 
(SC) 

Cycle Track through the village 2 15/05/2017 

119 90049199 SP_38072 LANDEN ROAD (SC) Speed Ramps (Rescind) Request to remove ramp outside 
189 Landen Rd 

2 17/05/2017 

120 90049374 SP_38249 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD 
WEST (SC) 

Loading Bay Or P&D parking 2 23/05/2017 

121 90049737 SP_38615 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Bus Stop Marking New Bus cage marking and pole 
for stop relocation at Clancy Quay 
SCR 

2 09/06/2017 

122 90049832 SP_38715 CRUMLIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing pedestrian crossing at junction of 
R110 / R111, 

2 14/06/2017 

123 90049995 SP_38880 CLARENCE MANGAN 
ROAD (SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking from 07:00 to 24:00,  
in conjunction with a one-way 
system (see SR38881). 
  
  

2 26/06/2017 

124 90049996 SP_38881 CLARENCE MANGAN 
ROAD (SC) 

One-Way System in conjunction with a P&D&PP 
scheme (See SR38880). 
  

2 26/06/2017 

125 90050178 SP_39065 MEATH STREET (SC) Pedestrian Zone carry out necessary feasibility 
study for the street 

2 06/07/2017 

126 90050343 SP_39238 STANNAWAY AVENUE 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing at the Shops at junction of 2 19/07/2017 

127 90050425 SP_39322 SOMERVILLE DRIVE 
(SC) 

Double Yellow Lines at the WASF Hall, (for the same 
length of the yellow box). 

2 24/07/2017 

128 90050470 SP_39367 MARROWBONE LANE 
(SC) 

Disab Park Bay General in the indented free parking space 
adjacent to St. Catherine's 
Community Sports Centre. 

2 25/07/2017 

129 90050518 SP_39416 EMMET ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Extend 
Area) 

outside No.s 28 & 30. 2 27/07/2017 

130 90050559 SP_39457 EMERALD SQUARE Double Yellow Lines outside and adjacent to No. 1. 2 31/07/2017 

P
age 35



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

(SC) 

131 90050874 SP_39774 OLIVER BOND STREET 
(SC) 

Clearway peak hours 2 21/08/2017 

132 90051520 SP_40429 BRIDGEFOOT STREET 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing Request for pedestrian crossing at 
site of new park 

2 22/09/2017 

133 90051548 SP_40457 WORMWOOD GATE 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing across Wormwood Gate at 
junction with Bridge Street 

2 26/09/2017 

134 90051642 SP_40552 BULFIN COURT (SC) Traffic Calming on the section from Bulfin Road to 
Thornton Heights. 

2 03/10/2017 

135 90051765 SP_40679 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Pedestrian Crossing Outside Gael Scoil Inchicore 2 06/10/2017 

136 90051918 SP_40832 CLIFDEN DRIVE (SC) Speed Ramps 11626 see 2 17/10/2017 

137 90048253 SP_37115 MOUNTSHANNON 
ROAD (SC) 

P&D/Permit Park (Change 
Hours) 

for extension of the operational 
hours. 

3 21/03/2017 

138 90048610 SP_37475 DONORE ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of Scheme. 3 07/04/2017 

139 90049803 SP_38685 SHANNON TERRACE 
(SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 3 13/06/2017 

140 90049904 SP_38787 MAYFIELD ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Change 
Hours) 

For extension of operational 
hours. 

3 19/06/2017 

141 90051521 SP_40430 SAINT JAMES'S 
TERRACE (SC) 

P&D/Permit Parking Pay & Display and Permit Parking 
Scheme 

3 22/09/2017 

142 7000028  SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Double Yellow Lines outside the Rialto Parish Centre, 
No. 500, SCR. 

4 25/10/2017 

143 7000063  CARMAN'S HALL (SC) Speed Ramps on Carman's Hall. 4 26/10/2017 

144 7000521  INNISMORE (SC) Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

Extension of double yellow lines at 
the entrance to Innismore estate, 
Crumlin Village. 

4 22/11/2017 

145 7000641  SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Yellow Box Yellow box at junction of South 
Circular Road and Victoria Street. 

4 28/11/2017 

146 7000767  REUBEN STREET (SC) Speed Ramps Speed survey for the increase in 
traffic volume. 

4 06/12/2017 

147 7000995  RUTLAND AVENUE (SC) Double Yellow Lines Double yellow lines at pedestrain 
entrance to Rutland Avenue flats 

4 22/12/2017 

148 7001029  JAMES'S WALK (SC) Double Yellow Lines Along the Luas line (from Rialto 
stop to Fatima stop) 

4 03/01/2018 

149 7001526  EMMET ROAD (SC) Yellow Box Install a yellow box junction. 4 31/01/2018 

150 90044746 SP_12249 JOHN DILLON STREET 
(SC) 

Yellow Box Outside St. Francis CBS. 4 12/05/2014 

151 90044747 SP_12251 JOHN DILLON STREET School Ahead Sign on Thomas Davis St Sth & John 4 12/05/2014 

P
age 36



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

(SC) Dillon St. 

152 90044771 SP_12638 BRIDGEFOOT STREET 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing Across Bridgefoot Street at 
Usher's Quay. 

4 29/05/2014 

153 90044781 SP_12897 LEIGHLIN ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming on the road. 4 23/06/2014 

154 90044854 SP_14722 SAINT AGNES ROAD 
(SC) 

Pedestrian Crossing From Rockmead Court Senior 
Citizens Complex to the shops. 

4 20/10/2014 

155 90045028 SP_16937 DOLPHIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing for junction at Rialto 
Bridge/Herberton Rd/Dolphin Rd. 

4 26/02/2015 

156 90045079 SP_17481 WINETAVERN STREET 
(SC/SE) 

Pedestrian Crossing at Christ Church 4 09/04/2015 

157 90045107 SP_17729 SAINT MARY'S ROAD 
(SC) 

Traffic Lights (new)  turning left from St. Mary's Road 
to St. Agnes' Road 

4 20/04/2015 

158 90045108 SP_17759 BANGOR ROAD (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase at the junction 4 21/04/2015 

159 90045127 SP_17975 SUNDRIVE ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

Yellow Box (Extend) outside Supervalu. 4 06/05/2015 

160 90045183 SP_18499 KYLEMORE WAY (SC) Speed Ramps on the road. 4 04/06/2015 

161 90045344 SP_19820 PARNELL ROAD 
(SC/SE) 

Pedestrian Crossing at junction with Clogher Road 4 25/08/2015 

162 90045524 SP_21016 INCHICORE TERRACE 
SOUTH (SC) 

Traffic Calming on the road. 4 23/10/2015 

163 90045603 SP_27824 PARK WEST AVENUE 
(SC) 

Traffic Island at the roundabout, towards the 
Nangor Road, on the hotel side of 
the road. 

4 16/11/2015 

164 90045889 SP_29755 USHER'S QUAY (SC) Stop Sign ... or stop line outside petrol 
station. 

4 18/02/2016 

165 90045936 SP_30105 ORANMORE ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming at the junction with Blackditch 
Road 

4 04/03/2016 

166 90046115 SP_31167 HANBURY LANE (SC) Disab Park Bay General in the vicinity of Thomas Court 
Primary Care Centre. 

4 05/05/2016 

167 90046578 SP_34408 CRUMLIN ROAD (SC) Stop Sign Request for stop sign at entrance 
to car park in crumlin village 
beside Llyods pharmacy. 

4 17/10/2016 

168 90046783 SP_35578 WINDMILL ROAD (SC) Buildout at the junction of Windmill Road 
and Crumlin Road. 

4 15/12/2016 

169 90046801 SP_35622 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Bus Lane (Change of 
hours) 

For extension of the operational 
hours, eastbound on the approach 
to Leonard’s Corner.   

4 20/12/2016 

170 90048628 SP_37493 LOUGH CONN ROAD 
(SC) 

Speed Ramps on the road. 4 11/04/2017 

171 90049083 SP_37954 BLUEBELL ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay General outside the Bluebell Community 4 09/05/2017 

P
age 37



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

Centre 

172 90049088 SP_37959 JAMES'S WALK (SC) Double Yellow Lines at the entrance to Nos. 64-74. 4 10/05/2017 

173 90050561 SP_39459 DOLPHIN ROAD (SC) No Parking along the green. 4 31/07/2017 

174 90050695 SP_39593 CHAPELIZOD HILL 
ROAD (SC) 

Traffic Calming At entrance to the road from St. 
Laurences Road. 

4 09/08/2017 

175 90050731 SP_39629 JOHN STREET SOUTH 
(SC) 

Disab Park Bay 
Residential 

 a bay outside No. 54. 4 10/08/2017 

176 90051043 SP_39944 CLONMACNOISE ROAD 
(SC) 

Yield Sign at the junction where two roads 
merge into one (heading east 
twds the circular green), near 
Nos.161/162. 

4 28/08/2017 

177 90051333 SP_40236 GARDEN LANE (SC) Loading Bay (Rescind) on Garden Lane. 4 12/09/2017 

178 90051842 SP_40756 SAINT JAMES'S 
TERRACE (SC) 

Disab Park Bay General Request for 2 bays in the vicinity 
of the Church.  

4 11/10/2017 

179 90051895 SP_40809 O'DONOVAN ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay 
Residential 

outside No. 9.  4 12/10/2017 

180 7000020  CLADDAGH GREEN 
(SC) 

Yellow Box (Rescind) Opposite Boylan's Pharamacy 
from a point 17.1m south of PLS 2 
to a point 19.6 m south of PLS 2 
on the west side of the road. 

5 24/10/2017 

181 7000146  SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Bus Stop Marking 
(Rescind) 

Relocate Dublin bus Stop Number 
1366 on the South Circular Road 

5 02/11/2017 

182 7000199  CRANE STREET (SC) Double Yellow Lines Clearways on both siides 24 hrs/7 
days between Thomas Street and 
Rainsford Street. 

5 06/11/2017 

183 90045266 SP_19178 TURVEY AVENUE (SC) P&D/Permit Parking on the road. 5 16/07/2015 

184 90045324 SP_19688 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Traffic Calming between Bulfin road and 
Brookfield Road 

5 17/08/2015 

185 90045421 SP_20316 PATRICK STREET 
(SC/SE) 

Stop Sign To replace the YIELD sign at 
junction of Dean Street and 
Patrick Street. 

5 22/09/2015 

186 90045521 SP_20998 KILMAINHAM LANE (SC) No U Turn Cars coming of Chapelizod 
Byepass and trying to do a U turn 
at the entrance to the War 
Memorial Gardens 

5 22/10/2015 

187 90045629 SP_27961 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD 
WEST (SC) 

Bus Stop Marking Extension of bus cage marking by 
15 metres westwards. 

5 20/11/2015 

188 90045774 SP_28935 MILITARY ROAD (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit On Military Road at the junction of 
St. John's Road West. 

5 18/01/2016 

189 90047838 SP_36694 DONORE AVENUE (SC) Disab Park Bay outside No. 24. 5 24/02/2017 

P
age 38



item confirm_ref
erence 

sharepoint_
reference 

road topic request_description sr_status logged_date 

Residential 

190 90047925 SP_36783 SAINT FRANCIS' 
SQUARE (SC) 

P&D Parking (Change 
Hours) 

Change hours to Monday-Sunday 
7.00-24.00. 

5 02/03/2017 

191 90048341 SP_37204 SOUTH CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC/SE) 

Bus Stop Marking bus stop relocation. 5 27/03/2017 

192 90049415 SP_38291 CRUMLIN ROAD (SC) School Ahead Sign School Ahead Sign for Loreto 
Junior & Senior Primary Schools. 

5 24/05/2017 

193 90050610 SP_39508 RAINSFORD STREET 
(SC) 

Right Turn Only  5 02/08/2017 

194 90051660 SP_40571 BOW LANE WEST (SC) Yield Sign On the cycle slip lane that comes 
from Bow Lane West onto 
Thomas Street.    

5 03/10/2017 

195 90051710 SP_40624 O'LEARY ROAD (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road. 5 04/10/2017 

196 90051853 SP_40767 CLONMACNOISE ROAD 
(SC) 

Bus Stop/Sign (Rescind) Appeal of SR 39531 5 11/10/2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39





A Liberties Revival
Year 4 Update to the South Central Area Committee

March 2018

P
age 41



The Liberties Dublin
Over 500 indigenous and international businesses | A vibrant inner city community | Major 
social and cultural landmarks | One of Dublin’s most iconic visitor destinations | A creative 
quarter | An innovation district with thriving enterprise clusters | A respected education centre 

P
age 42



Time for a Change
• Action Plan to galvanise Thomas Street in 2013

• City Council SCA and local businesses established Liberties 

Business Area Improvement Initiative in 2014

• Active effort to build a business network in the area and develop a 

shared vision – The Liberties Business Forum

• Communicate a positive message about The Liberties – actively 

and positively promote the area, instil confidence 

• Major investment in public realm: clean streets, refurbished 

buildings, new parks and improved green spaces, tree planting and 

street greening, better management of streets

• Maximise benefits of major public/private sectors investment 

(NCH, tourism development, Diageo, student housing development)

• Create a sustainable and engaged neighbourhood - a place to be 

proud of

P
age 43



Retail & Small Businesses

One of Dublin’s best known commercial 
and mercantile districts
The Liberties will be a centre for artisan food 
production, quality neighbourhood shopping, distinctive 
independent retailing and a lively café, pub and 
restaurant scene. 

P
age 44



Retail & Small Business

2018: 

• much reduced vacancy and demand for retail 
space, 

• new businesses, 

• investment in property and shopfronts and 
revitalised streets,

• greater number of cafes, food and venues, 

• increased footfall and visitor dwell time

P
age 45



Innovation District
A location of choice for new media, tech 
and digital enterprises
Our ambition is to draw further companies and 
employment to the area and to encourage ‘scale up and 
stay’ of existing businesses, retaining dynamic 
enterprises within the local economy. 

2018:

• Award-winning small business incubators – The GEC

• new office developments in train, new workshare 
operator opening in 2018 (800 people), 141 Thomas 
Street, Cornmarket, South Mills, Donore Avenue

• development of ‘Innovation Corridor’ centred on St 
James’s Hospital/NCH

P
age 46



The Innovation Corridor
• St James Hospital campus - €1bn investment in new 

Children’s Hospital, MISA, specialist cancer research and 
care, ambition for a Health, Well-being & Digital Innovation 
Quarter

• National College of Art & Design – industrial design, vis 
comms, medical devices

• NDRC – digital start-up investor

• The Digital Hub – 100 micro-SME enterprise cluster 
including tech, media, med tech, gaming, fin tech

• The GEC – 90 companies – media, services, micro-
enterprises – Best Business Incubator with University 2018

• State agency and semi state engagement to develop a 
compelling investment proposition

• Grow the quantum of office floorspace in the area

• D8 Innovation Corridor Taskforce

P
age 47



“Strategically, Dublin needs the Liberties as a counterpoint to the Silicon Docks. In 
this historic quarter of Dublin, ideas flourished and innovation thrived. Our vision is 
to build on the innovation that exists so that this part of Dublin can be a world 
centre of excellence in innovation, health and well-being.“ (Peter Finnegan, DCC) 

P
age 48



Hot Press Magazine, March 2018

P
age 49



Tourism

Dublin’s ’must-see’ area
Our goal is to welcome more visitors, improve their 
experience of the area, encourage them to dwell for 
longer and explore, and to support additional 
investment in attractions and accommodation 

Tell the story of The Liberties, enhance cultural life, 
put The Liberties firmly at the centre of city’s cultural 
life

P
age 50



2018: Tourism is a Key Driver• 1.7m visitors to The Guinness 
Storehouse in 2017

• 0.6m visits to St Patrick’s 
Cathedral / 225k to Christ 
Church Cathedral (2016)

• 200k visits to Teelings since 
opening June 2015 –
transforming potential of 
Newmarket

• Pearse Lyons Distillery opened 
September 2017

• Dublin Liberties Distillery and 
The Vaults to open Summer 
2018.

• €40m investment by Diageo in 
Roe Distillery & Guinness 
Storehouse

• Over 700 hotel bedrooms to 
open in area by March 2019

• Actively promoting quality cafes 
and places to eat. Lively pubs 
and venues.

P
age 51



Creatives & Culture
A quarter of highly-respected education 
centres and creative industries 
The area boasts a vibrant and diverse arts and culture 
scene. Its home to a large number of architecture and 
design practices, galleries and art collectives, craft stores 
and studio spaces. We aim to continue to strengthen and 
enhance that and to retain creative talent in the area.

2018: 

• how can we support social enterprises, 

• a new chapter for NCAD, 

• our busy cultural calendar – Culture Date with Dublin 8, 
Culture Night, Liberties Festival, St Thomas’s Abbey 
events

P
age 52



Liberties 
Enterprise Day & 
Enterprising 
Towns

• Liberties Enterprise Day: Investment 
and small business showcase held in 
partnership with Bank of Ireland 
Enterprising Towns | Oct 2017

• 300 attendees to range of events and 
presentations at NDRC - SME Fair and 
Networking - social enterprise 
involvement

• Liberties entrant to inaugural all-Ireland 
Enterprising Town Awards competing 
with almost 80 urban centres across 
Ireland

P
age 53



Our Positive 
Message

• www.libertiesdublin.ie website and active social 
media channels promote the area, its businesses 
and community

• Regular newsletters to business and community 
keep people informed about what’s going on and 
encouraged to be part of area renewal

• A ‘go to’ information resource for existing and 
new businesses - promotional brochures, ’How 
to…’ business guides, premises to let

• Media coverage of the area – national and local 
media, RTE Nationwide, radio - city gets to know 
The Liberties

• Visitor information, what’s on, maps and guides

P
age 54



Snapshot of Activities in 2017

• 6 meetings of Liberties Business Forum

• 1 Liberties Enterprise Day partnering with Forum & Bank of Ireland 

Enterprising Towns: c.300 visitors over day

• Entrant to Ireland’s Most Enterprising Town

• 12 monthly newsletters to over 500+ business and community

• 40k visits to www.libertiesdublin.ie – over 70% from Dublin

• 16k followers across social media – 3 active platforms

• 10k visitor maps and guides printed and distributed

• Ongoing engagement with new arrivals, existing businesses, investors and 
agencies

• Exposure local and national media

• 1 Culture Date with D8 – active social and cultural programme

P
age 55



Votes of Confidence
• Announcement in 2017 of St James’s Gate Quarter 

project covering 15 acres south of Thomas Street

• €200m regeneration planned for Newmarket and Mill 
Street

• Commencement of work at Grand Canal Harbour –
Marlett

• Digital Hub masterplanning for future growth

• Development of long vacant sites – Cork Street

• €15m investment by DCC in public realm, parks and 
amenities 

P
age 56



A Liberties Revival
Thank You

www.libertiesdublin.ie

P
age 57





 

 

 

This naming and numbering proposal refers to a new development of 5 houses, 
at 486 Bluebell Avenue, Bluebell, Dublin 12, as indicated on the attached map - 
reference R.M. 36972 

No.’s 1-5 Bluebell Avenue Crescent Corrán Ascaill an Chloigín Ghoirm) 

 

1-5 Bluebell Avenue Crescent Corrán Ascaill an 
Chloigín Ghoirm) 

Page 59





Page 61





 

 

Bluebell Mills Apartments’ (Árasáin Mhuilte an Chloigín Ghoirm) set out in 
two apartment blocks - Block A, No’s 1 – 48, and Block B, No’s 1 – 29.

 

Bluebell Mills Apartments Árasáin Mhuilte  an 
Chloigín Ghoirm) Block A; No’s 1 – 48 and Block B; No’s 1 - 29, 

Page 63





Page 65





ROAD DRAINAGE

MAINTENANCE UNIT
GULLY CLEANING OPERATIONS 12/03/2018

Total Inspected:   423

Total Cleaned:   396

Total Omissions:   19

Total Repairs 

Noted:   38

Total Street 

Visits:   108

Date Area Street Insp. Cl. Om. Rep. M/V Comments

22/02/2018 30 BELGROVE PARK 3 3 0 0 CV

@24 no 

problem 

found

04/02/2018 31 CHAPELIZOD BYPASS 84 84 0 2 GCCV 1

20/02/2018 32 BRIDGE ST LWR PL @ loading bay & o'sheas 3 3 0 0 GV 2

01/02/2018 32 COOK ST PL @ needle exchange 2 2 0 0 GV 1

26/02/2018 32 HEUSTON BRIDGE NTH PL @ bike rack 3 3 0 0 GV 2

01/02/2018 32 HIGH ST PL from nicholas st X 5 gullies 5 5 0 0 GV 1

06/02/2018 32 LADY'S LANE PL all gullies 4 4 0 0 GV 1

08/02/2018 32 MERCHANT'S QUAY 8 8 0 0 GCCV 1 Rd finished

08/02/2018 32 MERCHANTS QUAY FT PATH GRID 1 1 0 0 GV 1 Rd finished

08/02/2018 32 MERCHANT'S QUAY liffey side 3 3 0 0 GV 1 Rd finished

08/02/2018 32 MERCHANT'S QUAY liffey side 6 6 0 1 GCCV 2 Gcc Vac2

20/02/2018 32 MOUNT BROWN PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 2

20/02/2018 32 OLIVER BOND STREET PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 2

13/02/2018 32 S C Rd inchicorerd-conyinghamrd PL @ 757 2 1 1 0 GV 2

27/02/2018 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 1 0 1 0
Jetting 

Crew

GccVac2 Near 

Taxi Rank At 

Heuston 

Station 

Enterance. 

For Early 

Morning 

Work

21/02/2018 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 3 2 1 1 GV 1

Councillor 

Query(At 

Traffic Lights 

At Entrance 

Heuston 

Station)T.M2

13/02/2018 32 USHER ST PL @ & opp flats 2 2 0 0 GV 2

08/02/2018 32 USHER STREET 9 9 0 0 SV 1

Councillor 

Query(Road 

Finished)T.M 

1

07/02/2018 45 SAINT ANNE'S ROAD 2 2 0 0 SV 1

CQ EARLY 

MORNING

DCC DRAINAGE DIVISION Gully Cleaning Program 

Daily Returns Statistics For - All Areas In The South Central Area, All Machines, All Operators, February 2018 

Insp.=Inspected, Cl.=Cleaned, Om.=Omissions, Rep.=Repairs, M/V=Machine/Van, MDN=Machine Digging Needed, 

HDN=Hand DiggingNeeded, OSP= On-StreetParking, TS= TrafficSensitive

13:53

Compiled by

Roy O'Donnell 

Mark Gleeson

Brendan O'Neill 1
Page 67

javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl0','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl1','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl2','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl3','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl4','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl5','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl6','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl7','')
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188146
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188146
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187703
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187703
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188101
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188101
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187617
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187617
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188275
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188275
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187616
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187616
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187782
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187782
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187826
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187826
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187833
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187833
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187834
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187834
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187820
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187820
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188100
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188100
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188102
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188102
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187952
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187952
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188307
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188307
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188111
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188111
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187953
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187953
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187825
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187825
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187804
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187804


ROAD DRAINAGE

MAINTENANCE UNIT
GULLY CLEANING OPERATIONS 12/03/2018

07/02/2018 46 GILBERT ROAD 1 1 0 0
Jetting 

Crew

Gcc Vac2 AT 

L/S 1 Cctv 

Done . 

Working but 

roots at 

connection in 

pipeline. 

View Cctv

07/02/2018 46 S.C.R. CLANBRASSIL ST TO DOLPHINS BARN 3 3 0 0 SV 1

CQ junction s 

c r os 249 

and 241

23/02/2018 46 S.C.R. CLANBRASSIL ST TO DOLPHINS BARN 0 0 0 0 GV 2 Early morning

01/02/2018 47 BROOKFIELD ROAD PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 1

15/02/2018 47 CORNMARKET PL @ spar 1 1 0 0 GV 2

15/02/2018 47 DEAN ST PL new st sth-lukes ave 8 8 0 0 GV 2

15/02/2018 47 FRANCIS ST PL @ jcn thomas st 1 1 0 0 GV 2

15/02/2018 47 FRANCIS STREET PL @ bike rack 2 2 0 0 GV 2

26/02/2018 47 JAMES'S ST PL @ post office 1 1 0 0 GV 2

26/02/2018 47 JAMES'S ST PL opp post office 4 4 0 0 GV 2

08/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Tipped

08/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Tipped

12/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1

Tipped and 

cleaned van

13/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 CV Tipped

19/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2 Tipped van

20/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2

Tipped van 

twice

02/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Emptying van

05/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GM 2

Dropped 

G/Mc To 

Depot

05/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2 Tipped

05/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GM 2

GM2 

Dropping off 

GM2

06/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2 Tipped

06/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1

Collected g 

tate

26/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2

Collected g 

tate

27/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2

27/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check

27/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2

Went back to 

kit van out

28/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1

21/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2

Left new van 

in yard

21/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2

Tipped and 

cleaned van

22/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2

Tipped van 

twice

22/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE PL @ pedestrian crossing 2 2 0 0 GV 2

22/02/2018 47 MARROWBONE LANE PL @ pedestrian crossing 2 2 0 0 GV 2

01/02/2018 47 S C Rd PL @ rothe abbey & 656 + opp 664 5 5 0 0 GV 1

01/02/2018 47 S C Rd PL at 606 1 1 0 0 GV 1

01/02/2018 47 ST CATHERINES LANE WEST PL all gullies 3 1 2 0 GV 1

02/02/2018 47 THOMAS COURT PL jcn of handbury lane 1 1 0 0 GV 1

15/02/2018 47 THOMAS ST PL @ jcn francis st 1 1 0 0 GV 2

26/02/2018 47 VICAR ST PL @ flats & laneway 5 4 1 0 GV 2

20/02/2018 48 HERBERTON RD PL @ 84 1 1 0 0 GV 2

13:53

Compiled by

Roy O'Donnell 

Mark Gleeson

Brendan O'Neill 2
Page 68

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187815
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187815
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187805
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187805
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188219
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188219
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187624
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187624
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187972
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187972
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187971
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187971
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187973
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187973
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187974
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187974
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188273
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188273
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188274
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188274
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187865
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187865
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187866
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187866
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187896
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187896
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187942
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187942
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188064
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188064
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188099
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188099
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187654
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187654
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187737
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187737
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187739
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187739
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187754
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187754
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187768
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187768
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187779
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187779
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188278
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188278
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188291
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188291
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188292
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188292
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188293
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188293
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188323
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188323
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188140
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188140
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188141
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188141
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188186
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188186
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188188
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188188
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188189
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188189
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187623
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187623
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187625
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187625
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187626
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187626
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187669
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187669
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187975
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187975
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188272
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188272
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188104
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188104


ROAD DRAINAGE

MAINTENANCE UNIT
GULLY CLEANING OPERATIONS 12/03/2018

16/02/2018 48 HERBERTON RD s.c.rd.-canal 0 0 0 2
MAINT 

STH cut back kerb

02/02/2018 48 ROTHE ABBEY PL @ jcn s c rd 3 3 0 0 GV 1

02/02/2018 48 SUIR RD PL @ bus stop 2 2 0 0 GV 1

01/02/2018 49 BULFIN RD PL @ jcn s c rd 2 2 0 0 GV 1

02/02/2018 49 SPA ROAD PL @ eurospar 1 1 0 0 GV 1

02/02/2018 50 ABERCORN SQUARE 12 12 0 0 SV 3

Road 

Finished(G.C 

1)

26/02/2018 50 BALLYNEETY ROAD 8 8 0 4 CV Gullys packed

Not Finished

,MDN

Not Finished

,MDN

Gullys packed 

needs 

machine 

stopped at 

119

,MDN

26/02/2018 50 GARRYOWEN ROAD 13 11 2 2 CV Gullys packed

23/02/2018 50 INCHICORE SQUARE NORTH 9 9 0 0 SV 3

Road 

Finished(T.M 

1)

23/02/2018 50 INCHICORE SQUARE NORTH 9 9 0 0 SV 3

Road 

Finished(T.M 

1)

23/02/2018 50 INCHICORE TERRACE NORTH 4 4 0 2 SV 3

Road 

Finished(T.M 

1)

27/02/2018 50 JAMESTOWN ROAD 23 21 2 3 CV

Road 

Finished(T. M 

1)

23/02/2018 50 RING STREET 10 8 2 0 SV 3

Road 

Finished(G.C 

1)

New gully

,HDN

19/02/2018 51 CLOVERHILL DRIVE 4 4 0 0 SV 3

At Jun to 

clover hill 

road

05/02/2018 51 KILEEN RD PL at entrance to thorntons 3 3 0 0 GV 1

new cleaning 

eye gully and 

connection 

into sewer

,MDN

new pit gully 

and 

connection 

into sewer

,MDN

05/02/2018 51 KYLEMORE RD PL bus stops landen-r/about 5 5 0 0 GV 1

16/02/2018 51 KYLEMORE RD PL bus stops landen-r/about 0 0 0 0 GV 2

Checked gully 

for M.glesson

27/02/2018 51 KYLEMORE ROAD INNER ROAD 1 1 0 0 GV 2

Between 

238+ 240,ea

05/02/2018 51 LE FANU ROAD PL at 286 4 4 0 0 GV 1

23/02/2018 50 CREMONA ROAD 10 10 0 3 SV 3

23/02/2018 50 CREMONA ROAD 10 10 0 3 SV 3

26/02/2018 50 DECIES ROAD 13 11 2 5 CV

15/02/2018 51 BALLYFERMOT AVENUE 0 0 0 1
MAINT 

STH

05/02/2018 51 KYLEMORE RD ballyfermot rd-naas rd 0 0 0

KYLEMORE RD ballyfermot rd-naas rd 0 0 0 2 CON STH

2 CON STH

05/02/2018 51

13:53

Compiled by

Roy O'Donnell 

Mark Gleeson

Brendan O'Neill 3
Page 69

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187991
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187991
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187662
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187662
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187661
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187661
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187627
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187627
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187663
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187663
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187642
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187642
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188264
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188264
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188265
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188265
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188199
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188199
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188195
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188195
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188200
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188200
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188305
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188305
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188197
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188197
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188045
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188045
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187740
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187740
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187741
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187741
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188017
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188017
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188321
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188321
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187742
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187742
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188198
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188198
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188194
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188194
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188263
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188263
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187964
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187964
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187712
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187713
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187713
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187712


ROAD DRAINAGE

MAINTENANCE UNIT
GULLY CLEANING OPERATIONS 12/03/2018

13/02/2018 52 DAVITT RD FT PATH GRID PL @ luas 2 2 0 0 GV 2

02/02/2018 52 DAVITT RD PL suir rd to statoil garage 10 10 0 0 GV 1

07/02/2018 52 DAVITT ROAD 33 29 4 1 GCCV 1

Rd finished 

all packed bar 

and hamber 

needed at all 

gullies

12/02/2018 52 DAVITT ROAD 5 0 0 0 EE

QA 

Inspection, 

gullies 

cleaned OK

13/02/2018 52 SLIEVENAMON RD PL @ apts entrance 5 5 0 0 GV 2

22/02/2018 53 BUNTING ROAD PL opp 102 1 1 0 0 GV 2

13/02/2018 53 CASHEL ROAD 1 1 0 0 SV 1

Councillor 

Query(Outsid

e No66)

01/02/2018 53 CASHEL ROAD 1 0 0 0 GV 1

CQ...new 

water valve

07/02/2018 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL @ fmk finance 2 2 0 0 GV 1

07/02/2018 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL @ mount drummond ave 4 4 0 0 GV 1

07/02/2018 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL greenmount-canal X 6 1 1 0 0 GV 1

07/02/2018 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL mt jerome-greenmount 5 4 1 0 GV 1

07/02/2018 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL opp convent parkside 2 2 0 0 GV 1

07/02/2018 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL opp mt jerome pkside 6 6 0 0 GV 1

07/02/2018 53 KIMMAGE RD LWR PL @ jcn casimir rd 1 1 0 0 GV 1

13/02/2018 53 OLD COUNTY RD PL @ fast fit 2 2 0 0 GV 2

27/02/2018 53 OLD COUNTY ROAD 1 0 0 1 CV Out side 34

26/02/2018 53 PARNELL RD PL opp 1 1 1 0 1 GV 2

06/02/2018 53 PARNELL ROAD clogher rd to crumlin rd 1 1 0 0 SV 3

Opp 69 gully 

ok

04/02/2018 53 PARNELL ROAD clogher rd to crumlin rd 1 1 0 1 SV 1

CRM(Opposit

e No69/Canal 

Side)T.M2

23/02/2018 53 SAINT AGNES' ROAD 1 1 0 0 GV 2 At l/ s 15a

26/02/2018 53 SAINT CLARE'S AVENUE PL all gullies 2 2 0 0 GV 2

13/02/2018 53 SUNDRIVE ROAD PL outside DID electrical 1 1 0 0 GV 2

02/02/2018 53 WALKINSTOWN DRIVE PL ft path at 107 1 1 0 0 GV 1

16/02/2018 53 WINDMILL ROAD 1 0 0 1
MAINT 

STH UTL Cap

13:53

Compiled by

Roy O'Donnell 

Mark Gleeson

Brendan O'Neill 4
Page 70

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187948
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187948
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187664
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187664
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187784
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187784
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187906
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187906
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187949
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187949
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188190
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188190
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187958
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187958
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187628
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187628
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187792
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187792
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187796
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187796
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187797
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187797
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187793
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187793
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187795
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187795
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187794
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187794
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187798
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187798
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187950
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187950
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188303
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188303
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188277
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188277
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187850
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187850
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187708
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187708
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188221
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188221
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188276
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188276
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187951
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187951
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187665
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=187665
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188059
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=188059


Library Events for March 2018– South Central Area 

1 

 

Ballyfermot Library 

Non Regular or 
Regular Events 

Event Category Event Title Suitable Audience Date and Time 

Regular Exhibition 1916 Street Banners & Art 
Exhibition 

All  Ongoing 

Non-Regular Exhibition Celebrating Women in 
Ballyfermot 

All Month  

Non-Regular Storytime Celebration of storytime project 
for St Michael’s pre-school 

Parents & children 
who took part in 
project  

Friday 2
nd

  

Non-Regular Computer course Getting Citizens Online Course – 
a digital skills training course for 
people who have never used the 
internet 

Adults Monday 5
th
 – 

Friday 9
th
 10.00am 

– 12.00pm 

Non-Regular International 
Women’s Day 

 Ballyfermot Partnership 
International Women’s Day event 

Women Thursday 8
th
 

10.00am – 1.00pm 

Non- Regular Exhibition Launch Launch Celebrating Women in 
Ballyfermot and Ireland exhibition 
by author& historian, Liz Gillis 

All Thursday 8
th
 

@5.30om 

Regular Storytime Children’s story time in Cherry 
Orchard with Patricia 

Pre school children Wednesdays 6
th
 , 

13
th
 & 20

th
 Dec 

3.45pm 

Non- Regular Business 
Information 

LEO Business Advice Session Adults Thurs 8
th
  

Non-Regular Film D10 Be Well film show Adults Thurs 8
th
 10.30am 

Non- Regular World Book Day Celebration with children from 
local schools 

Selected children Wed 14
th
 11.00am 

– 1.00pm 

Non-Regular Healthy Ireland “Alcohol – what we know, what 
we don’t known and what we  
need to consider” talk by Clara 
Geaney 

Open to all Thursday 22
nd

 at 
6.30pm 

Regular Irish Language 
group 

Ciorcal Comhrá All  Tuesdays 6.00 – 
7.30pm 

Non- Regular Health Type 2 Diabetes workshop  All Last of 6 – Wed 7
th
 

10.00am – 
12.30pm 

Regular Adult education Ballyfermot University of the 3
rd

 
Age 

Closed to last years 
Communiversity 
group 

Wednesdays  
10.00- 12.30 

Regular Adult Education Communiversity Adult Tuesdays10.00 – 
12.30 

Regular Workshop “Smashing Barriers” 
Ballyfermot/Chapelizod  

Closed Thursdays   
10.30am- 1.00pm 

Regular Computer Class WALK computer classes Closed to members 
of WALK 

Tuesdays & 
Wednesdays 2pm 
– 4pm 

Regular Cookery Course “Healthy food made easy” Adult Tuesdays 10.00am 
-12.30pm  

Page 71



Library Events for March 2018– South Central Area 

2 

 

Non Regular or 
Regular Events 

Event Category Event Title Suitable Audience Date and Time 

Regular  WALK – Walkinstown Adult 
Learning  group 

Closed Wednesdays 
2.15pm – 5pm 

Regular  WALK – Walkinstown Adult 
Learning group 

Closed Mondays 1.30pm – 
4.00pm  

Regular Meeting Ballyfermot Heritage Group All  Thursday 7
th
 @ 

6.30pm 

Regular Meeting COPD info session  Last Thursday of 
month  
2.00pm – 4.00pm 

Regular Toddler Group ‘Baby Bounce’ Story telling for 
toddlers 

Children  Tuesdays @ 11am  

Regular Facilitated Group Monday Afternoon Book Club  Adult 2
nd

  Monday of 
month @ 2.30pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups 
or organisations 

Junior Writers Group Children Thursdays at 
6.00pm 

Regular Facilitated Group West Dublin Widow’s C.A.R.E. Adult 2
nd

 and Last Friday 
of each Month - at 
11.00am 

Regular Facilitated Groups 
or Organisations 

Creative Writers Group Adult Wednesday 13th at 
6.00pm  

Regular Book Club Junior Book Club Children 10yrs – 
12yrs 

Thursday 28
th
 @ 

3.30pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups 
or Organisations 

St. John of God, Walkinstown, 
Book Club 

Adult Mondays & 
Thursdays  
10.30am – 1.00pm 

 

 

Page 72



Library Events for March 2018– South Central Area 

3 

 

Dolphin’s Barn 

 

Regular or Non 

Regular 

Type of Event Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Regular Book Club Grand Canal Book Club Adult 2nd Monday of the 

month at 7pm 

Regular Book Club Beyond the Pale Adult  External Book Club  

Regular Book Club Margaret Mason Adult External Book Club 

Regular Book Club Dolphins Barn Book Club Adult Last Thursday of the 

month at 11am 

Regular Book Club Afternoon Book Club Adult 3rd Wednesday of the 

month  

Regular Book Club Page Turners Adult External Book Club – 

Meets every 6 weeks 

Not Regular Book/Information 

Display 

Healthy Ireland At Your 

Library 

Adult Month of March  

Not Regular Exhibition Edward Lee Exhibition Adult Month of March 

Regular History Group Crumlin History Group Adult Every 2nd Wednesday 

Not Regular Talk Healthy Ireland: Childhood 

Worries and Anxieties 

 Adult 22 March at 11am 

Regular Workshop Parent and Toddler Group Parents/Children Every Tuesday at 

10.30am 

Not Regular Workshop Engineering Event Adult/Children 1 March 10.30am 

 

Book Displays 

Funny Books for Children 

Staff Recommends 

 

 

 

Page 73



Library Events for March 2018– South Central Area 

4 

 

Inchicore Library 

Regular/Non 

Regular 

Type of Event Event Title Adult / 

Child / 

Family 

Date and Time 

Regular Book Club The Monday Book Club reading 

‘Ghost Riders’ by  Richard Grant 

Adult First Monday of 

Month 5th March @ 

6.30pm 

Regular Book Club Wednesday Book Club  Adult Last Wed of Month 

28th March @ 6.30pm 

Non Regular Book Display International Dublin Literary 

Award 2018 

Adult ongoing until June 

Non Regular Book Display Children City Wide  Children until March 

Regular Book Display New  Adult Book Display Adult Adult 

Regular Book Display New children’s Book Display Children  

Non Regular Conversation 

Exchanges 

Toddler as Gaelige family Sats 10-11am 

(booked out)) 

Non Regular Exhibition Great Book of Kilmainham Adult ongoing 

Non Regular Exhibition Spirit of San Jose  March 

Regular Exhibition Children’s Art Competition 

Display 

Children  

Regular Facilitated Group Knitting Circle Adult Thursdays from 3 – 

4pm 

Regular  Miscellaneous Notice Board Display Adult Adult 

Regular  Miscellaneous Film Showing Adult 14th March @ 6pm 

Non Regular Talk Engineers Week Children 1st March @ 10.30 

(booked out) 

Regular Workshop Colouring Children During the month 

Regular Workshop 

 

Story Time  Children Tuesdays at 2.30 – 

3.15pm 

Non Regular Workshop 

(music) 

Bopping Babies Under 4 Starting 22nd Feb 

Thurs @ 10.30-11am 

for 5 weeks (Booked 

out) 

 

Page 74



Library Events for March 2018– South Central Area 

5 

 

Book Display 

International Dublin Literary Award 2018 Adult 

Children City Wide  Children 

New  Adult Book Display Adult 

New children’s Book Display Children 

 

Page 75



Library Events for March 2018– South Central Area 

6 

 

Walkinstown Library 

 

Non Regular 
or Regular 

Events 

Event Category Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Non Regular Talks as part of Healthy 
Ireland 

Power of Positive Emotion Adult Monday 12 February at 
7pm 

Non Regular Workshop Getting Citizens on Line. -  
a digital skills 
training course for those 
who have never used the 
internet.  

 

Adult only Monday 5th to Friday 9th 
March from 2pm to 4pm 

Non Regular Workshop Getting Citizens on Line Adult only Wednesday 21st to 
Wednesday 28th March 
from 2pm to 4pm 

Non Regular Class/Workshop Up and Go Exercise Class 
for over 55's 

Adult only Thursday 8 March at 
11am 

 Talk talk on the artist John 
Lavery, inspired by his 
painting 'Mrs. Lavery 
Sketching' 

Adult only Wednesday 14 March at 
6.45 

  Communiversity  Due to start end of 
January until June  
Thursdays 10-1p.m. 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Knitting Circle Adult Wednesday’s 6pm-8pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

GIY(Grow-it-yourself) Adult 3rd Monday of the month 
from 6.30pm-7.45 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Adult Readers’ Group Adult 2nd Thurs. @ 3.30pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Crochet Group  Adult Saturdays @11am 
 

Regular Conversation 
Exchange 

Ciorcal Comhra (Irish 
language exchange) 

Adult  Mondays 6pm-7pm 

Regular Mother and Toddler 
Group 

 Mother and toddler group Children  Tuesdays 11am-
12.30pm 

Regular Book Club  Children’s Book Club Children 4th Monday of the month 
@ 4pm 

 

 

Page 76



SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP REPORT  

21ST  MARCH 2018 

 

 The Lord Mayor's 5 Alive Challenge is a partnership initiative between Dublin City Sport & 
Wellbeing Partnership and the Lord Mayor’s Office. 
The Challenge is in its 6th year and has encouraged hundreds of people to take up regular 
exercise over the past 5 years. 
 
This year we went back to our roots and targeted people who were interested in taking up 
jogging for the first time or those who had started and need some encouragement to keep it 
going. For 2018, we also introduced Mentors - people who have completed the Challenge in 
previous years and who will run with slower joggers/walkers to encourage them around the 
course. 
 
The Challenge is to complete 5 Dublin road races –  
 
Tom Brennan Memorial 5k New Year's Day Road Race on 1st January   
AXA Raheny 5 on 28th January   
BHAA Garda Cross Country 2 Mile/4 Mile on 3rd February 
MSB St. Patrick's Festival 5k Race and Family Fun Run on 18th March 
BHAA Dublin City Council 10k race on 7th April 
 
If one of the registered participants can't make one of the races, they can substitute for one of 
the parkruns organised by parkrun Ireland. DCSWP Sport Officers have secured places in the 
challenge for their ‘Couch to parkrun’ participants in an attempt to further their running 
development. 

 

 

 Get Dublin Walking: DCSWP Sport Officers, in partnership with the HSE and DCC Community 
Section are rolling out a series of walking groups across the city under the banner of ‘Get Dublin 
Walking’. Get Dublin Walking Programmes running in the South Central Area include: 

 
- Brickfields Park – every Saturday morning at 9.30am, in partnership with Fatima Groups 

United. The aim of this programme is to filter participants into the parkrun to create a 
sustainable pathway for people to walk or run on a regular basis. 

 
- Swinging 50’s Club – A walking group for females aged 50+ from the Ballyfermot area. The 

local DCSWP Sport Officer is supporting the groups to explore more challenging walks 
outside of the immediate area. 
 

- Ballyfermot Walkers - Commenced in mid January, the group meets every Monday and 
Wednesday at 7pm from Ballyfermot main church. Open to all ages and gender, this walking 
group is run in conjunction with the DCC Community Section. 

 
- Kylemore CTC – A group of students (16 – 22 years) from the Kylemore Community Training 

College have commenced a pre-class walk on Friday mornings at 9am, facilitated by the local 
DCSWP Sport Officer. 

Page 77

https://www.facebook.com/TBM5kNewYearsDayRace/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/axaraheny5/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/BHAA-375711882376/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/msbpatricks5k/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/BHAA-375711882376/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/DublinCityCouncil/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/parkrunEire/?fref=mentions


 Change for Life: DCSWP Sport Officers combined resources to deliver a community based health 
related fitness programmme to members of the public in across Dublin City. The programme ran 
in tandem with the Operation Transformation TV show and combined weekly exercise sessions, 
nutritional advice and structured walks to help improve overall health, wellbeing and quality of 
life. Sessions commenced in January in Bluebell & Fatima. 
 
Many participants also took part in the OT Run on Feb 24th in the Phoenix Park – a fantastic 
achievement! 
 
The programme culminated in a celebration evening in the Mansion House on Friday, March 9th, 
where their achievements were acknowledged and information provided on how participants 
could continue with their journey to a sustainable healthy lifestyle.  
 
 

 Men on the Move - a free physical activity programme that is aimed at adult men who have 
been inactive for a while and want to get back to exercising and improve their fitness levels.  It 
involves twice weekly exercise sessions made up of a combination of aerobic, strength & 
flexibility components.   The programme will run in 3 areas for 12 weeks starting in January. For 
further details or to sign up please contact our HSE Health Promotion & Improvement Officer, 
David Phelan, at 01-2227734/087-6525001 or david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie 
 

Area Venue Start date Days & Times 

Terenure 

St. Joseph’s Parish Hall 

Terenure Rd East 

Terenure, D6 

Tuesday January 16th 

at 7pm 

Every Tuesday at 7pm 

for 12 weeks 

Terenure 
The Evergreen Centre, 

Terenure Rd North, D6 

Thursday January 

18th at 7pm 

Every Thursday at 7pm 

for 12 weeks 

Rialto 

F2 Centre 

3 Reuben Plaza 

Rialto, D8 

Wednesday January 

10th at 12pm 

Every Wednesday at 

12pm for 12 weeks 

 
 

 Fit4Class 
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership teamed up with Athletics Ireland to offer Fit4Class 
programme to primary schools across the City. Fit4Class, which commenced on the 12th of 
February,  is a 10-week programme aimed at introducing primary school children from junior 
infants to fourth class to athletics in a fun, engaging and non-competitive environment.  It 
focuses on the use of games to develop fitness whist enhancing agility, balance and coordination 
- all fundamental to long term physical athletic development. Participating schools have been 
given an equipment bag and resource booklet. 5 schools (one in each administrative area) have 
also been offered pre and post programme fitness testing i.e. 20 metre sprint, standing long 
jump and standing vertical jump. 
 
 

Page 78

mailto:david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie


 Champions  
This multi-sports programme is aimed and adults with intellectual disabilities and is run in 
partnership with St. John of God Menni Services. It is ongoing every Monday from 11am – 12pm 
in Sport & Fitness Ballyfermot. 

 

 Thrive 
Thrive is a referral programme geared towards engaging people with mental health difficulties. 
This can range from people who suffer with anxiety or depression right through to people who 
may have suffered an acquired brain injury and need assistance in re-integrating into their 
communities from a personal independence, social & general wellbeing viewpoint. Some current 
ongoing Thrive programmes include – 
 

 Fatima; Tuesdays from 11am – 1pm (in partnership with Fatima Groups United) 
 

 Cycling Programme for women in partnership with STAR  Realt Nua ETB & Ballyfermot 
Outward Bounds Adventure Centre (Wednesdays 10.30am – 12.30pm) 

 

General 
 
 

 Athletics Coaching Programme continues to be held twice weekly (Thurs & Fri afternoons) at St. 
Patrick’s Primary School (in conjunction with Donore Harriers Athletic Club). A Zumba/Dance 
class is also delivered on Thursday afternoons as an alternative to the athletics. 

 
A similar Athletics Programme has just commenced with Scoil Íosagain, Crumlin, on Wednesday 
mornings at 9.30am 

 

 Chair Yoga is ongoing every Thursday from 2pm – 3.30pm for older adults in the Walkinstown 
area. 

 

 Chair Aerobics is ongoing every Thursday from 11am – 12pm in Donore Avenue Youth & 
Community Centre. This class is aimed at older adults in the south inner city area. 

 

 Gymtasics, a gymnastics class for children with mixed abilities continues to take place every 
Wednesday from 4.30 to 5.30pm. 
 

 A Learn to Swim initiative has commenced this month, aimed at teenagers from CLAY Youth 
Project. The sessions take place each Thursday at 4pm in Crumlin Pool and are delivered in 
conjunction with Swim Ireland. 

 
A similar initiative called ‘it’s never too late’ is ongoing every Monday morning at 9.30am in 
Herberton Gym, Rialto. This programme is open to any adults in the area who would like to learn 
how to swim. 

 

 The Presidents Awards (Gaisce) will be issued through Dublin City Council, who is a Gaisce 
Award Partner with the local DCSWP Sport Officer for Ballyfermot being a young people’s PAL 
(President Award Leader). She is currently working with a D10 youth group aged 15 – 26 years & 
a St. John of God Menni Services Group aged 18 – 26 years to help them both achieve the award. 

 
 

Page 79



Clogher Road Sports Centre – News/Info 
 

 Hot Yoga continues every Monday from 7pm – 8pm. Open to anyone in the local area, male or female, 
 this class will help improve posture, flexibility & core strength while also tackling stress. Contact DCSWP  
Sport Officer Will Morris or the centre directly for more details. 
 

 Bokwa classes take place on Monday & Thursday evenings. Bokwa is a cardio based blend of hip-
hop and step aerobics that taps into South African-style dance and is fast gaining popularity 
everywhere! 

 

 Teen Gym has returned to Clogher Road Sports Centre. The sessions are divided into girls 
hour/boys hour and are open to all teenagers from the local area. Ongoing every Monday and 
Tuesday from 5 - 7pm. 

 
 
St. Catherines Sports Centre, Marrowbone Lane – News/Info 
 

 In an exciting development, College of Dance, the premier centre of excellence for dance 
training in Ireland has taken up a long term residency in St. Catherines. This will bring much life 
to the area and create a buzz around the facility, even during off-peak hours. 

 
The College of Dance, in association with Dublin City Council, are holding an Open Dance Day on 
Sunday, March 25th at Studio8 (St. Catherine’s Community Sports Centre), for everyone 14yrs 
plus who likes to dance! 
The day will include workshops, screening for potential callbacks/auditions/scholarships and the 
opportunity to sign-up for expert classes. 

 

 Atomic Stage School are in the centre every Saturday from 10am – 5pm 
 

 Indoor Bowling for older adults takes place every Friday at 12pm in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre 
 

 Flexi Stretch’ Class continues every Tuesday from 1-2pm and every Wednesday from 6.30pm – 
7.30pm 

 

 Ballet Áthas Youth Ballet Company hold an open session every Sunday at 11.30am (for ages 14 – 
30) 

 

 St. Catherine’s Boxing Club continues to operate from the centre every Monday, Wednesday & 
Friday evening. The club is growing from strength to strength.  

 

 A number of parent & toddler/baby friendly classes are currently running in St. Catherines. 
Please contact the centre directly for more details. 

 
 
Football Development Officers Update 
 

 SPAR/FAI Primary School 5’s: DCSWP/FAI Development officer Jonathan Tormey will facilitate 
this tournament for primary school boys & girls in Irishtown stadium, commencing the week of 
the 12th of March. Over 150 schools from across the city will be taking part! 
 

Page 80



 The Late Night League series returns for 4 weeks over April. This diversion programme for youth 
at risk is a partnership between the FAI, DCC & An Garda Síochána. 

 

 Sprog Soccer takes place every Monday from 4pm to 5pm in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre for 4 – 
8 year olds. 

 

 Men’s Homeless Street League takes place each Friday from 11am – 1pm in St. Catherine’s 
Sports Centre. 

 

 A Primary School Soccer Blitz will take place on Friday 13th April (5th & 6th class girls) and Monday 
16th April (5th & 6th class boys) in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre for local schools in the area. 

 

 A 4-week School Blitz, catering for 200 kids from 4 Schools in the Crumlin Area has recently 
commenced and will continue each Monday from 10am – 2pm in Clogher Road Sports Centre 
(until April 16th). 

 

 The FAI/DCSWP Development Officer for Ballyfermot is partnering with Cherry Orchard FC to 
deliver school coaching sessions, coach development sessions, drop-in sessions, girl’s football 
and also a community camp from March 26th – 29th. 

 

 Community Football: This initiative for 8 – 14 year olds will take place every Thursday at 6.30pm 
- 8pm in Basin Street pitch, working with local community Gardaí and local youth services (starts 
early April) 

 

 Community Coach Development:  The FAI/DCSWP Development Officer will co-ordinate a 
National C Licence course (fully booked) for Dublin Coaches in the AUL Complex from 3rd – 6th 
April (9am to 6pm daily). 
 

 Teen Football resumes in April every Thursday from 5pm - 6pm in Inchicore Community Sports 
Centre. These sessions are aimed at teens who don’t play for local teams and also act as a Garda 
Diversion Programme - working with local Garda, schools and specific youth community support 
groups. 

 
 
 

Boxing 
 

 The Startbox Initiative, a partnership between the IABA and Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing 
Partnership, represents an ideal way for young people (10 – 17 years) to first engage with 
amateur boxing, Ireland’s most successful Olympic sport. It is delivered by our 5 dedicated 
IABA/DCSWP Development Officers via local schools (primary & TY level) in communities across 
the Dublin City area. Approx 2,000 young people take part each year.  
 
The Programme is structured into Bronze (non contact), Silver and Gold phases. The first two 
phases focus on general strength & fitness, method and technique. 
 
Currently, the IABA/DCSWP Development Officer is delivering these sessions to a number of 
schools in the South Central Area. 

 
 

Page 81



Rugby 
 

 Our DCSWP/Leinster Rugby Development Officer is continuing to deliver Primary & Secondary 
School Programmes in the South Central Area. Current sessions include: 
 
- Girl’s Rugby starting in Loreto College, Crumlin 
- Rugby Development Programme commencing in St. John’s DLS Boy’s Secondary School in 
Ballyfermot 
 
 
 
Rowing 

 

 Get Going … Get Rowing 
This initiative, jointly supported by DCSWP, Sport Ireland, Healthy Ireland, Active School Flag & 
Trinity College, has been successfully rolled out for a number of years by Rowing Ireland’s 
Leinster Women’s Development Officer, Michelle Carpenter. This is a rolling 4/6 week school’s 
programme for girls (second level). Rowing Ireland provide rowing machines and a community 
coach to the schools. 
 
A Transition Year Programme gives students the opportunity to get on the first step of the 
coaching ladder and enables them to be involved in a youth leadership role, working in a fun and 
interactive environment with younger students and hence, bringing value to the school. 

 

 Olympic Values Education Programme (accompanies above programme) 
Students will be taught values such as fair play, respect, dignity etc… through rowing. Get Going 
... Get Rowing will be the first programme in Ireland to roll this out.  

 

 Phoenix Rowing Club: A recreational rowing club for adults based in Dublin Municipal Rowing 
Centre. The club is purely aimed at getting people on the water to enjoy the activity and 
surrounding environs of the Memorial Gardens, Phoenix Park & River Liffey. No previous 
experience required and members can progress at their leisure to a level of their comfort and 
choosing. 
 

 Active Age Rowing - Tuesdays and Fridays from 12.20pm - 1.30pm in Dublin City Municipal 
Rowing Centre, for new and on-going participants aged 55 and over. No previous experience 
required.  
 

 
Cricket Development Officer update 
 

 We will be delivering schoolyard cricket sessions in the area during this period. In particular, we 
will focus on schools that are entered in the Leprechaun Cup (primary school cricket 
competition) and the secondary schools competition.  

 

 We will be focusing on the following schools during this period:  
 

- Drimnagh Castle BNS (Thursdays 11am - 12.30pm) 
- Scoil Úna Naofa, Crumlin (Thursdays 1pm - 2.30pm) 

 

Page 82



 Provincial cricket sessions continue during this period on Friday nights from 5pm - 9.30pm in 
North County Cricket Club where we have a number of players from the South Central Area 
involved in these sessions. Players are between 10-18 years of age. 

 

 DCC Boys Easter Camps will be taking place on the 3rd, 4th, 5th and 6th of April from 10.30am - 
4.15pm in North County Cricket Club (U12, U14 & U17), open to all clubs in the South Central 
Area. DCC Girls Easter Camps will be taking place on the 26th, 27th, 28th and 29th of March from 
10.30am-4.15pm in St. Columbus College (U12 & U14), again, open to all clubs in the South 
Central Area. 

 
 
 
 
Contacts: 

Antonia Martin, DCSWP Programmes & Services Development Manager: 
antonia.martin@dublincity.ie  
Alan Morrin, Acting Senior Staff Officer, DCSWP: alan.morrin@dublincity.ie  
Martin McDonagh, Manager, Sports & Fitness Ballyfermot & Inchicore Sports Centre: 
martin.mcdonagh@dublincity.ie  
Cormac Healy, Manager, St. Catherine’s Sports Centre & Clogher Road Sports Centre: 
cormac.healy@dublincity.ie  
Igor Khmil, Sports Officer: igor.khmil@dublincity.ie  
Catherine Flood, Sports Officer: catherine.flood@dublincity.ie  
Will Morris, Sports Officer: william.morris@dublincity.ie  
Sharon Kelly, Sport Officer: sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie  
Gareth Herbert, Sport Officer: gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie  
Michael Moore, Soccer: michael.moore@fai.ie  
Marc Kenny, Soccer: marc.kenny@fai.ie  
David Rake, Soccer: david.rake@fai.ie  
Jonathan Tormey, Soccer: jonathan.tormey@fai.ie  
Ed Griffin, Boxing: shandygriffin@hotmail.com  
Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  
Gareth Murray, Rugby: gareth.murray@leinsterrugby.ie  
 

Report by 

Alan Morrin 

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership 

Page 83

mailto:antonia.martin@dublincity.ie
mailto:alan.morrin@dublincity.ie
mailto:martin.mcdonagh@dublincity.ie
mailto:cormac.healy@dublincity.ie
mailto:igor.khmil@dublincity.ie
mailto:catherine.flood@dublincity.ie
mailto:william.morris@dublincity.ie
mailto:sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie
mailto:gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie
mailto:michael.moore@fai.ie
mailto:marc.kenny@fai.ie
mailto:david.rake@fai.ie
mailto:jonathan.tormey@fai.ie
mailto:shandygriffin@hotmail.com
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:gareth.murray@leinsterrugby.ie




 
Development Department, 

Civic Offices. 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of  
South Central Area Committee 
 
 
 
 
 

     

With reference to the proposed disposal of the Council’s fee simple interest in a site at 
Davitt Road close to intersection with Benbulbin Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8. 
 

 

Under Indenture of Lease dated 2nd of November 1937 Dublin City Council demised a site at 
Davitt Road close to intersection with Benbulbin Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8 to Laurence 
Gartlan for a term of 150 years from 20th May 1937.    
 
By Indenture of Assignment dated the 14th November 1969 a portion of this lease the subject 
of this report, was assigned to Patrick Solon for the residue of the term thereof.  Patrick Solon 
has applied to Dublin City Council to acquire the Council’s fee simple interest therein and the 
Law Agent has confirmed that the applicant has a statutory entitlement to acquire said fee 
simple interest.   
 
Accordingly it is proposed to dispose of the Council’s fee simple interest in the site at Davitt 
Road close to intersection with Benbulbin Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8 to Patrick Solon subject 
to the following terms and conditions:  
 

1. That Dublin City Council demised a site to Laurence Gartlan under a lease dated the 
2nd of November 1937 for a term of 150 years from 20th May 1937. The portion 
proposed to be disposed is more particularly shown outlined in red on Map Index No.  
SM-2014-0112 which was assigned by Indenture of Assignment dated the 14th of 
November 1969 to the applicant for the residue of the lease. 

 

2. That the purchase price shall be €20,000 (twenty thousand euro) plus V.A.T (if 
applicable). 

 

3. That the applicant shall pay any charges which they are liable for under the relevant 
legislation and shall clear all outstanding rent, rates and taxes (if any) on the property 
prior to the completion of sale. 

 

4. That the above proposal is subject to satisfactory proof of title. 
 

5. That the applicant shall pay Valuers Fees of €1,200 (one thousand, two hundred euro) 
plus V.A.T, together with the Councils legal fees, which will be agreed with the 
Councils Law Agent. 

 
 
 

Paul Clegg 
_________________ 
Executive Manager 
 

Page 85





 

Page 87





      Development Department 
                                                 Civic Offices 

Block 3, Floor 2 
                                          
To the Chairperson and Members of 
The South Central Area Committee 
 
Meeting:  21st March 2018 
Item No:    
 

Proposed disposal of a plot of land at Sarsfield Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10, to CIE 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
It is proposed to dispose of the Fee Simple on a 427.5 m² plot of land at the above address to CIE. 
The property is shown delineated in red on Map Index No. 99/31.3.201/3. The following Terms & 
Conditions were agreed between Dublin City Council and James Gahan – Group Property 
Manager CIE in April 2000. This matter did not proceed at the time due to title issues. The title 
issues are now resolved. 
 
The Chief Valuer has confirmed that the disposal can proceed on the same terms and conditions 
as contained in the original agreement as follows; 
 

1. That the area being disposed of is as shown hatched and coloured in pink on attached 
drawing no.99/31.3.201/3 prepared by Iarnrod Eireann. The plot has an area of 427.5 m² 
 

2. The compensation payable to Dublin City Council is €6,349 (six thousand, three hundred 
and forty nine euro) 
 

3. Each party will be responsible for their own costs and legal fees in this matter. 
 

4. CIE will provide a 2 metre high concrete block wall, capped and faced with stone, between 
the points marked X and Y on the attached map, and will make good the adjacent ground 
disturbed by the works. CIE will bear the full costs of these accommodation works. 
 

5. These terms and conditions and other terms as deemed necessary by the Law Agent, will 
be incorporated into a legal agreement which will be prepared by the Council’s Law Agent 
and completed by both parties. 

 
 
No agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of 
contracts has taken place. 
 
PAUL CLEGG       5

th
 MARCH 2018  

_________________                  __________ 
Executive Manager                  Date    

Page 89





Page 91





DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

21st February 2018 
 
 

Q1 Councillor Paul Hand 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q2 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to investigate the vacant property at (details supplied).The 
gardens are being used by local youths for anti-social behaviour and recently a shed 
went on fire requiring the Fire brigade and the Gardaí to attend. If the gardens could 
be cleared urgently and the Council can make the house available again to badly 
needed people who are in need of housing. 
 
Reply 
From mid January the Crumlin Area Office were in receipt of complaints that the 
fence at the back of (details supplied) had been broken and youths were accessing 
the back garden. Further complaints were received stating that these youths were 
keeping a horse in the back garden and had built a “tent” which they were sleeping 
in. Unfortunately, due to access issues and a lack of co-operation from the tenants of 
(details supplied), it was not possible to take immediate remedial action to properly 
deal with this issue.   The seriousness of the matter escalated on 25th January when 
a fire was started in the back garden which damaged the fencing and the trees in the 
adjoining house. Following this incident the horse was relocated to the green area in 
(details supplied)and was subsequently removed by DCC. On Friday 26th January a 
Housing Maintenance crew gained access to the back garden with the co-operation 
of the next door neighbour. The back garden was cleared out and the fence was 
repaired. We have had no further complaints in relation to this matter since these 
works were undertaken.  
 
Contact:  Chris Butler, Area Housing Manager, Crumlin Area Office 
Tel:  222 5512 
Email:  chris.butler@dublincity.ie 
 

Q3 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the Area Manager to ask our Development Department for a full report on any 
correspondence that has arisen as a result of the letter sent to (details supplied) in 
January 2018, requesting that he return the keys of the Iveagh Markets to the 
Council, and to include any next steps that might be envisaged. 
 
Reply 
Solicitors for (details supplied) have responded to recent correspondence issued to 
(details supplied) requesting him to hand back possession of the Iveagh Market to 
Dublin City Council.  This is currently being reviewed by the Law Agent who will 
advise on how the Council should proceed in this matter. 

 
Contact: Helen McNamara, Senior Executive Officer 
Tel: 222 3488 
Email:  helen.mcnamara@dublincity.ie 
 
 

Page 93

mailto:chris.butler@dublincity.ie


Q4 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the Area Manager to ask our Planning Department how many Construction 
Management plans have been lodged with them to date by the National Children's 
Hospital Development Board, and on which dates were they lodged. 
 
Reply 
 Two Construction Management Plans have been submitted to date. 
One on the 28th of February 2017 & the other on the 6th of July 2017. The earlier 
submission included a plan for the enabling works. 

 
Contact: Greg Bryan, A/Administrative Officer, Planning Registry 
Tel:  222 3108 
Email: greg.bryan@dublincity.ie 
 

 
Q5 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager to ask our Housing Department how many families are 
currently living at the Family Hub on Clonard Road, what date each family moved in, 
the size of the family and whether any families have been placed into permanent long 
term accommodation to date. 
 
Reply 
There are currently 21 families residing in the Family Hub on Clonard Road.  Below is 
a breakdown of family size and the dates they moved in.   

 
1 Adult + 1 Child – 08/12/2017 
1+1 – 08/12/2017 
1+1 – 08/12/2017 
2+1 – 11/12/2017 
1+3 – 12/12/2017 
2+1 – 14/12/2017 
2+2 – 14/12/2017 
2+2 – 15/12/2017 
2+2 – 15/12/2017 
2+1 – 19/12/2017 
2+1 – 21/12/2017 
2+1 – 22/12/2017 
2+4 – 02/01/2018 
1+1 – 10/01/2018 
1+2 – 15/01/2018 
1+4 – 15/01/2018 
1+1 – 18/01/2018 
1+1 – 19/01/2018 
1+1 – 23/01/2018 
1+1 – 06/02/2018 
2+1 – 08/02/2018 

 
To date one family has moved to a HAP tenancy.   
 
Contact: Eileen Gleeson, Director, Dublin Region Homeless Executive 
Tel: 222 5296 
Email: eileen.gleeson@dublincity.ie 
 
 
 

Page 94

mailto:greg.bryan@dublincity.ie


Q6 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the solar panel on top of (details supplied) to 
be repaired, as this was damaged during a recent storm. 
 
Reply 
This work has been carried out. 
 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent  
Tel: 222 3435 
Email: sean.redmond@dublincity.ie  
 

Q7 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to address the problem of water pressure at (details 
supplied). This premises is losing business because of this issue not being 
addressed. The problem is caused by the premises next door (details supplied) 
which is closed and the owner will not allow access to have the problem resolved. 
 
Reply 
As per previous correspondence from the Chief Executive, questions dealing with 
water supply, water quality and wastewater should not now be submitted for 
responses to the City Council or Area Committees. They should be referred directly 
to Irish Water. The following are the contact details for Irish Water: 
 
Telephone: 1890 278 278 (Lo-Call) 
Web:  www.water.ie  
Twitter:  @IrishWater 
Postal Address: Irish Water, PO Box 860, South City Delivery Office, Cork 
City. 
 
If you need to raise any issue concerning water supply etc., please call the Lo-Call 
telephone number 1890 278 278 and identify yourself as an Elected Representative. 
You will be put through to the Local Representative Support Desk in Irish Water’s 
Customer Contact Centre who will deal with you directly. Alternatively, there is a 
specific e-mail address at Irish Water for Councillors: 

LocalRepSupport@water.ie. 

 
The Local Representative Support Desk at Irish Water operates from 9.00am – 
5.30pm, Monday to Friday. 
 
Contact: Ronan O Rourke, A/Executive Manager (Engineering) 
Tel: 222 4336 
Email: ronan.orourke@dublincity.ie 
 

Q8 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
  

Q9 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 

Page 95

http://www.water.ie/
mailto:LocalRepSupport@water.ie
mailto:ronan.orourke@dublincity.ie


Q10 Councillor Paul Hand 
            To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)  

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q11 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager, to arrange for the filling in of space left from the removal of 
trees at (details supplied), there are a lot of senior citizens living on this road and the 
footpath is a danger to them. 
 
Reply 
I can confirm that these defects are on our works list and a repair will be carried out 
as soon as we have a crew available in the area. 
 
Contact: Carl Ryan, Executive Engineer Roads Maintenance 
Tel:  222 8812 
Email: carl.ryan@dublincity.ie 

 
Q12 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange for a cleaning of (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services (details supplied) cleaned on the 30th January 2018.  
We will have these roads monitored and cleaned when necessary. 

 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 222 4240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

 
Q13 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager, to write to the ESB requesting them to arrange the 
removal of the graffiti from their sub-station at (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
Graffiti has been removed at the substation at (details supplied). 
 
Contact:  Anna McDermott, Acting Public Domain Officer, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 5117 
Email:  anna.mcdermott@dublincity.ie 
 

Q14 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager, to arrange for the removal of graffiti from the wall at the 
junction of (details supplied). 
 
Reply 

Removal of graffiti at from the wall at (details supplied)  has been completed. 

 
Contact:  Anna McDermott, Acting Public Domain Officer, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 5117 
Email:  anna.mcdermott@dublincity.ie 

 
Q15 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager, to request the ESB to remove graffiti from the ESB pole 
outside (details supplied). 

Page 96

Tel:222


 
Reply 
The ESB have been requested to remove the graffiti from the ESB pole at (details 
supplied) 
 
Contact:  Anna McDermott, Acting Public Domain Officer, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 5117 
Email:  anna.mcdermott@dublincity.ie 
 

Q16 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to request Dublin Bus to arrange for a bus stop be installed 
closer to St. Luke’s Hospital 1-2 in St James’ Hospital. Patients from hospital 5 the 
Diabetic Clinic find if very far to walk to get the bus in its present place and some 
diabetics patients have difficulty walking. 
 
Reply 
The Area office will forward the councillor’s request to the National Transport 
Authority for their consideration. 
 
Contact:  Brian Lyons, Senior Staff Officer, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 5245 
Email: brian.lyons@dublincity.ie 
 

Q17 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q18 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q19 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q20 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q21 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q22 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

Page 97



 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q23 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q24 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q25 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager, to arrange for an inspection of (details supplied).This 
family is suffering ill health from a constant dampness in the bedrooms, air vents 
have not resolved the problem. 
 
Reply 
Vents have been installed in this dwelling. A further inspection will be carried out 

 within the next two weeks in relation to the report of dampness. 
 

Contact: Frank d’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email:  frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 

 
Q26 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
 To ask the Area Manager regarding (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q27 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
 To ask the Area Manager regarding (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q28 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to once and for all resolve the following issue.  I have 
raised this on numerous occasions but nothing seems to have been done as the 
problem still exists. In fact it has got worse (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q29 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager to give a detailed outline of how Dublin City Council 
intends to consult with residents, community groups, services and statutory agencies 
for the Cherry Orchard LAP? 
 
 

Page 98



Reply 
Further to the presentation to the January Area Committee, Dublin City Council’s 
Planning Department published an “Issues Paper” for Park West – Cherry Orchard 
on Monday 12th February to begin the public consultation phase for the Local Area 
Plan. Members of the public are invited to submit comments over a period of five 
working weeks, until Friday 16th March 2018. In order to notify members of the public 
an official advertisement was placed in the Evening Herald on Monday 12th February, 
and a press release will be issued to the Ballyfermot Echo for the Thursday 22nd 
publication. In addition posters will be erected locally in the area in c. 16 locations. 
The Issues Paper along with Comment’s Boxes will be on permanent display in the 
Orchard Community Development Centre, the Ballyfermot Community Civic Centre 
and the Civic Offices, Wood Quay. Notices will also be placed on the official DCC 
facebook and twitter pages and we would invite the Members to share these posts on 
their own social media profiles.  
 
Members of the LAP Planning team will be available to discuss the LAP with the 
public at the following dates/ times:  
 
Monday, 26th February: The Orchard Community Development Centre, 2-
3.30pm 
Friday, 2nd March:            Unit 11, The Plaza, Park West Business Park, 12-2pm 
Saturday, 3rd March:        Cherry Orchard FC, Elmdale, 10 – 11am                  

    Cherry Orchard Equine Centre, 12-1pm  
Wednesday, 7th March: The Orchard Community Development Centre, 7.30-
8.30pm (linking in with Bingo night).  
 
In addition we wish to invite the Members on a walk-about on the morning of Monday 
26th February to inspect and discuss the challenges and opportunities for the key 
sites available for development, followed by lunch at the Orchard Centre. The 
Planning team will be staying on for a public information session that afternoon, and 
Members are welcome to stay for this and invite their constituents along. (Further 
details on this morning session to follow). 
 
One-page information flyers are also being prepared and will be made available 
locally. Please contact us if you wish to receive copies of this flyer.  

 
In addition members of the Planning team are continuing to meet with various 
statutory and service agencies involved in the area, incl. The Irish Prison Service, the 
HSE, the NTA, South Dublin CoCo. Screening letters for AA and SEA have been 
issued to the prescribed bodies for such reports, to be followed by an environmental 
scoping paper later this month.   

 
 Contact:  John O’Hara, A/City Planner 
 Tel: 222 3813 
 Email: john.ohara@dublincity.ie 

 
Q30 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager to ensure that the owner of the empty lot in Raheen Park 
keeps the land in a tidy condition and does not allow it to become a site for illegal 
dumping as has been the case in the past? 
 
Reply 
I have requested a title search on the private property at Raheen Park.  There was a 
sale agreed sign on the property in Dec 2017 and the sale has since been completed 
however, this would not yet be reflected in the register. As soon as the information 

Page 99

mailto:john.ohara@dublincity.ie


becomes available, I will write to the owner in relation to compliance with bye-laws 
and owners' responsibilities. 
 
The Derelict Sites Section has requested a reference of ownership with a view to 
contacting the owners regarding their obligations under the Derelict Sites Act 1990. 
 
In addition, the Area Office Public Domain Officer will monitor the site to ensure there 
is no illegal dumping.  

 
Contact:  Anna McDermott, A/Public Domain Officer, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 5117 
Email:  anna.mcdermott@dublincity.ie  
 
Contact: Nial Dully, Administrative Officer, Planning & Property Development 
Department 
Tel: 222 3941 
Email: nial.dully@dublincity.ie 
 

Q31 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager to seek an update of the proposed health centre for 
Drimnagh, including a timeframe for commencement of work on this centre? 
 
Reply 
Planning Permission was granted by an Bord Pleanála in November 2014 for the 
demolition of existing Health Centre, Mother McCauley and Alzheimer Centre and the 
construction of a new Primary Care Centre, new Community Centre and new 
Alzheimer Day Care Centre. 

 
I have received the following information from the HSE:  

 
The primary care needs of the area will be met by a number of new centres; the 
Primary Care Centre on Armagh Road which is due to open in early 2018 and the 
new Rialto Primary Care Centre which will be operational in Q2 2019.  In addition to 
these two new Primary Care Centres, Old County Road Health Centre and Limekiln 
Health Centre will be retained as satellites units to the Primary Care Centres.  
In 2018, the HSE will be reviewing health services and requirements for the area.  As 
part of this review, they will be assessing the site on Curlew Road with a view to 
progressing a project for a mix of health services at this site in 2019. 

 
The Councillor should contact the HSE directly for any further information in relation 
to this project. 

 
Contact: Brian Lyons, Senior Staff Officer, South Central Area Office.    
Tel: 222 5245   
Email: brian.lyons@dublincity.ie  
 

Q32 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager for an update on future plans for Maintenance Depots in 
Dublin South Central, please include future staffing levels in the answer? 

 
Reply 
The plan for the consolidation and development of a South City Operations Depot 
have not yet been developed.   

 

Page 100

mailto:nial.dully@dublincity.ie
Tel:222


The following depots in the South Central Area will be relocating to the North City 
Operations Depot in Ballymun : 

 Traffic Depot in Cherry Orchard; 

 Public Lighting & Electrical Services (Marrowbone Lane) and  

 The Housing Stores in Kylemore Park South, Ballyfermot. 
 

Contact: Eileen Quinlivan, Executive Manager, Housing &Community Services 
Tel: 222 3446 
Email: eileen.quinlivan@dublincity.ie 
 

Q33 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager for an update on the planned construction of affordable 
housing in Cherry Orchard? 
 
Reply 
The Minister for Housing, Planning and Local Government announced a new 
Affordable Housing Initiative in December 2017. A dedicated Affordable Housing Unit 
has been established to administer the scheme in conjunction with a multi-disciplinary 
working group to carry out feasibility studies, viability assessments and infrastructure 
requirements. 

 
The next step is to identify suitable sites from the City Council’s land bank and pilot 
some smaller sites under the various delivery options  i.e. directly by the Council or 
indirectly by transfer of sites at low cost to AHB’s to develop or advertise for 
expression of interests from developers.  

 
Three sites in Ballymun are currently being considered, which satisfy the 
Department’s criteria for funding as a regeneration and urban renewal area.   

 
Further sites in Cherry Orchard may also be considered as part of the Affordable 
Housing Scheme however no specific sites have been identified as yet.  

 
Contact: Dymphna Farrell, Senior Executive Officer, Housing & Community Services  
Tel: 222 6114   
Email: dymphna.farrell@dublincity.ie  
 

Q34 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager for an update on discussions with the HSE and Celtic 
Pigeon club, Inchicore on proposals to buy their respective sites to facilitate the 
development of St. Michael’s Estate? 
 
Reply 
The Area Manager has met with representatives of the Celtic Pigeon Club regarding 
the need to relocate them from this site to facilitate the development of the lands at 
this location.  The Council are considering options to facilitate the club handing back 
possession of the site to the Council.  The Councillor will be kept advised of 
developments in this regard. 
 
Contact:  Vincent Norton, Area Manager, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 6676 
Email:  vincent.norton@dublincity.ie 
 
 
 

Page 101

mailto:eileen.quinlivan@dublincity.ie
mailto:dymphna.farrell@dublincity.ie


Q35 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager how many homes have Dublin City Council, in conjunction 
with the Housing Agency bought in Dublin South Central and where are? 
 
Reply 
I would advise that over the last three years, 12 properties have been acquired in 
conjunction with the Housing Agency in the South Central Area.  The Housing 
Agency has, over the last twelve months, also identified properties for AHBs to 
acquire.  To date, two properties have been acquired for AHBs in this area.  I set out 
below the breakdown across the area.       

  

Year Area Housing Agency 

Units for DCC 

Housing Agency 

Units for AHBs 

2015 Dublin 8 

Dublin 12 

1 

1 

 

2016 Dublin 8 

 

1  

2017 Dublin 6W 

Dublin 20 

Dublin 8 

8 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 
Contact: Dymphna Farrell, Senior Executive Officer, Housing & Community Services 
Tel: 222 6114 
Email: Dymphna.farrell@dublincity.ie  

 
Q36 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager for an update on the proposed skate park for Le Fanu 
Park? 
 
Reply 
Clarifications are presently being sought from the preferred bidder on their tender; 

 however works are expected to start on site in May, all going to plan. 
 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent  
Tel: 222 3435 
Email: sean.redmond@dublincity.ie  
 

Q37 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q38 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied) 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
  

Q39 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)  

Page 102

mailto:Dymphna.farrell@dublincity.ie


 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q40 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager for all details pertaining to Aramark's contracts with Dublin 
City Council and how much DCC has paid them for the past 5 years.  

Reply 
Aramark have the following contracts with Dublin City Council:- 
Staff Restaurant :- Civic Offices, Wood Quay 
Staff Restaurant:- Motor Tax Office Smithfield 
Staff Restaurant:- Dublin Fire Brigade, The O’ Brien Institute Training Facility Marino. 

 
Overall Total:- €2,186,798.32 for 5 year period up to 31st December 2017. 

 
The above total includes provision of canteen services in the 3 locations and catering 
for training courses, meetings and events.  
 
Contact: John Ryan, Senior Executive Officer, Corporate Services Department 
Tel: 222 3964 
Email:  johnd.ryan@dublincity.ie 

 
Q41 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager how many employees whether direct or indirect are earning 
below the living wage of €11.70 an hour and to outline what DCC's strategy is to give 
effect to the motion on the living wage I proposed to the full meeting of DCC some 
years ago. 
 
Reply 
The pay rates of City Council staff are determined by Government pay policy and 
comply with the Minimum wage Acts 2000 and 2015. 

 
For information purposes, the minimum rate for General Operatives is €11.1036 an 
hour (not including travel and eating on site) and the minimum rate for Clerical 
Officers is €11.9849. 

 
Contact: Gerry Geraghty, Executive Manager, Human Resources and Corporate 
Services 
Tel: 222 2014  
Email:  gerry.geraghty@dublincity.ie 
  

Q42 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to immediately ensure 
that the following matter be addressed in our Tenants home (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q43 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager ask our Traffic Advisory Group to put in measures to ensure 
that motor traffic using the Crumlin Road between Dolphin’s Barn Bridge and 
Sundrive Road junction keep within the designated speed restrictions. This is a busy 
road used by many school children and elderly people. The measures requested 
should include speed limit signage and a LED speed indicator signs.  

Page 103



 
Reply 
In relation to the request for speed limit signage, such signs are provided only at the 
points of entry to a speed limit zone and at the points of change from one speed limit 
to another.  Repeater signs are not provided along roads where there is no change in 
the speed limit as this would lead to a proliferation of signs throughout the city. 

 
The request for a LED speed indicator sign at the above location has been referred to 
the Area Traffic Engineer for examination and report. The Councillor will be informed 
of the recommendation in due course. 
 
The Traffic Advisory Group at its meeting of 30th January, 2018, recommended road 
markings on Crumlin Road and on Sundrive Road approaching Loreto Junior and 
Senior Primary Schools as follows:- 
 
“SLOW - SCHOOL AHEAD” road markings on the south side of Crumlin Road in front 
of lamp standard No. 11 facing traffic going in a westerly direction, and on the north 
side of Crumlin Road in front of lamp standard No. 22 facing traffic going in a easterly 
direction. 
 
“SLOW - SCHOOL AHEAD” road markings on the west side of Sundrive Road in 
front of lamp standard 6 facing traffic going in a northerly direction. 
 
These measures have been referred for implementation. 

 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer, Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 

 
The Area Traffic Engineer has also requested a speed survey at the above location 
and the Councillor will be notified of the outcome in due course. 
 

 Contact:  Niall O’Neill, Area Engineer, Traffic Management & Control 
 Tel: 222 6393 
 Email: niall.oneill@dublincity.ie 

 
Q44 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to ensure that the 
following matter be addressed in our Tenants home (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q45 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to ensure that the 
following matter be addressed in our tenants home (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q46 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager request that the street lighting pole no. 10 on Downpatrick 
Road be painted as the old paint is falling away and rust is showing. 
 
 

Page 104

mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie
mailto:niall.oneill@dublincity.ie


Reply 
We will examine the pole here and any painting considered necessary, will be 
included on a future painting programme subject to available finances. 
 
Contact: Dale Donnelly, Graduate Engineer, Public Lighting & Electrical Service 
Tel: 222 4682 
Email: dale.donnelly@dublincity.ie 
 

Q47 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager arrange to have the following matter addressed (details 
supplied).  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q48 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager provide a list of current voids, with bedroom sizes, including 
acquisitions in Area’s K and L showing if they are with the depot or contractors and 
the expected for them to be completed and available for allocation. 
 
Reply 
These reports are now being issued on a quarterly basis with the next report due in 

 April 2018. The January report showed that there were 85 void units in the South 
 Central Area which includes both Area K and L.  Of  these 85 units, 10 are being 
 refurbished by Direct Labour and 46 are being refurbished by Framework contractors 
 and should be available for letting by mid February.  Task orders will be issued for 
 the remaining 29 units and these will become available for letting 6/8 weeks after 
 they have been assigned to contractors.  876 void units were completed during 2017 
 of which 255 were in the South Central Area. 
 A list of these properties will be forwarded directly to Cllr Dunne.  
 
 Contact:  Frank d’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
 Tel:  222 3517 
 Email: frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 
 
Q49 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to please ensure the following are carried out at Grange 
Cross Ballyfermot:- 

1. Yellow Box at service gate between NCBI Shop & the Roma Take-away 
2. Position waste bin along the footpath here between the Roma & Tim Young’s 

Public Bar 
3. Can anything be done about the deplorable condition of the service lane-way 

which can be left filthy from time to time. 
 
Reply 
1. The Traffic Advisory Group at its meeting of 17th November, 2011, did not 

recommend a yellow box at the service gate.   It is illegal to park in front of an 
entrance/exit.  Under the Road Traffic Act (Traffic and Parking) Regulations, 
Section 36, paragraph (2), "A vehicle shall not be parked in any place, position or 
manner that will result in the vehicle obstructing the entrance to or exit from a 
premises, save with the consent of the occupier of the premises". 

 
Instances of illegal parking should be reported to Dublin Street Parking Services, 
the City Council’s parking enforcement contractor at 602 2500, or to the local 
Gardaí, as it is a matter for enforcement under the Road Traffic Regulations.  

Page 105



 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer, Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 

 
2.  Arrangements have been made to have a litter bin fitted at the above mentioned    

          location. 
 

  3.  The above mentioned laneway is not in charge and as such is not included in our   
           cleaning schedules. 

 
 Contact:  Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services. 
 Tel:  222 4240 
 Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 
 
Q50 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please have a look at the following (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q51 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please arrange that the go-car model of shared car usage is 
promoted and supported on a full-time basis in Chapelizod and Drimnagh.  Can the 
Manager please indicate what measures are needed to ensure a full-time service is 
allowed in these areas? 
 
Reply 
There are currently two Car Clubs licensed by Dublin City Council to operate in the 
city. While operators do actively engage with Dublin City Council regarding their 
service and proposed location of cars the actual location of Car Club cars is largely a 
commercial consideration for each operator. 
 
Both operators have been made aware of the Councillors request and they can be 
contacted directly in this regard; 
 
GoCar:  Darragh.Genockey@GoCar.ie, Tel. 086 1610542 
Yuko (Toyota): aconnolly@toyota.ie, Tel. 087 4008364 
 
Contact: Christopher Carroll, Administrative Officer, Parking Policy & Enforcement 
Tel:   01-2222501  
Email:   Christopher.carroll@dublincity.ie 
 

Q52 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
Can the Area Manager please ensure that the graffiti recently placed on various utility 
service boxes, lamp standards, walls  etc. along Ballyfermot Road / Sarsfield Road 
be removed as a matter of urgency. 
 
Reply 
The area has been inspected and the graffiti removal has been requested with 
various utility service providers.  I have engaged a contractor to remove the graffiti on 
the walls from Sarsfield Rd to Ballyfermot Rd.  This work has been scheduled with 
the contractor and should be completed by week ending 23rd February 2018. 
Contact:  Anna McDermott, A/Public Domain Officer, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 5117 Email:  anna.mcdermott@dublincity.ie  

Page 106

mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie
mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie
mailto:Darragh.Genockey@GoCar.ie
mailto:aconnolly@toyota.ie
mailto:Christopher.carroll@dublincity.ie


 
Q53 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager request that a full costing for the resurfacing of Ballyfermot 
Road from Cherry Orchard Hospital to the Church of the Assumption be carried out I 
regret to say the current surface is well past its sell by date.  Over the last few years I 
have asked for this to be looked into with a view to replacing same. 
 
Reply 
The distance between the two locations mentioned is nearly two kilometres, so if I 
was to take the case of laying a surface course only with no reconstruction taken into 
account then I estimate the bill to be circa €800,000.00+. This is using an extremely 
competitive contractor’s rate.  At present the South Central Area office is considering 
an upgrade scheme to this section of road which is titled “Draft Design Proposals for 
the Ballyfermot Road Public Realm Improvement Plan by Urban Agency”.  In the 
meantime Road Maintenance will carry out general repairs until the outcome of this 
proposed scheme is known. 
 
Contact:  Carl Ryan, Executive Engineer, Road Maintenance 
Tel:  222 8812 
Email: roadmaintenance@dublincity.ie 

 
 
Discussions are underway between the South Central Area and Roads Department   
regarding the “Draft Design Proposals for the Ballyfermot Road Public Realm 
Improvement Plan by Urban Agency” to explore incorporating the NRA proposals for 
bus corridors. These discussions will establish if it is feasible to proceed at this stage 
and if so, to establish the lead Department for this extensive undertaking.  

  
 Contact: Kay Noonan Cork, Local Area Manager, Ballyfermot Area Office  
 Tel: 222 4667 
 Email:kay.noonan_cork@dublincity.ie  

 
Q54 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager request that the hole in the road way outside (details 
supplied), Cherry Orchard, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10, be repaired as a matter of 
urgency. 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q55 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to request that the following be looked into (details 
supplied) 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q56 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to request that the Parks Department place a few large 
boulders or dig a ditch at the possible entrance of cars coming into Californian Hills 
Park, Ballyfermot from Kylemore Road.  And that a full deep clean of the Park’s 
vegetation take place to clean the park of litter of many years.  That the Slí Na 
Slainte Route be re-opened with South Dublin County Council Parks Department and 
that all sections of the perimeter fence be spot welded and bolted to deter the 
removal of fence sections. 

Page 107



 
Reply 
Park Services have recently blocked an entry point into California Hills from 
Kylemore Road. All the railings facing residential areas have had their fixings welded 
to deter removal. The  park is maintained on a weekly basis and the vegetation was 
cleaned out at the last visit. The Irish Heart Foundation will be contacted in relation to 
possibly reinstating the Sli Na Slainte route in the park. 
 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent  
Tel: 222 3435 
Email: sean.redmond@dublincity.ie  

 
Q57 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to please give me an update on the Springvale Site on the 
Lucan Road, Chapelizod. To indicate the breakdown of the various housing types, 
anticipated commencement / completion of the housing, Scouts Den/ Community 
Hall and alternative arrangements for allotment holders. 

 
Reply 
This site, in conjunction with several other sites, has been identified as a potential 
Rapid Development location.  Outline proposals for these sites are still under review 
and being developed by the City Architects Department.  This review will be finalised 
during 2018 and accordingly, at that stage, full consultation of any proposed 
development will be undertaken with the local community and relevant stakeholders.  
Any development of this site will also be subject to a Part 8 approval process. 
 
Contact: Dymphna Farrell, Senior Executive Officer, Housing & Community Services 
Tel:  222 6114    
Email:  dymphna.farrell@dublincity.ie 

 
Arrangements are being put in place to select an in-house design team who will 
oversee the brief for the Springvale site. When that team has been established, a 
detailed brief will be prepared which will indicate a break down of the number of 
units, the location and scale of the scouts den, surface car parking etc. In relation to 
the allotment lease holders, a ten month lease arrangement has been put in place 
from 1st January 2018 which can be terminated sooner if DCC give thirty days prior 
notice. There are a number of alternative allotment sites within the 
Ballyfermot/Chapelizod catchment area which allotment users may consider when 
the Springvale site is no longer an option. 
 
Kay Noonan Cork, Local Area Manager, Ballyfemot Area Office 
Tel: 2224667 
Email: kaynoonan_cork@dublincity.ie 

 
Q58 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to request that a waste bin be placed outside the main 
entrance of St. John’s College, Le Fanu Road, Ballyfermot Dublin 10 in order to 
support the efforts of local environmentalists. I asked for this on 2 occasions last year 
despite being told it would be done I am still awaiting the bin. 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services had a litter bin installed at the above mentioned 
location on the 12th February 2018. 
Contact:  Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services. 
Tel:  222 4240 Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

Page 108



 
Q59 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to request a report on the following (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q60 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q61 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager how much longer will it take to house (details supplied). 
This young mother has been homeless for some time now. 
 
Reply 
The Central Placement Service has been in direct contact with Cllr. Ní Dhálaigh and 
a meeting has been arranged with the applicant (details supplied) to take place on 
Monday 12th February 2018.  

 
Contact: Eileen Gleeson, Director, Dublin Region Homeless Executive 
Tel:  222 5296 
Email: eileen.gleeson@dublincity.ie 

 
Q62 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to comment on the following (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q63 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager with regard to (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q64 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to report on the process (details supplied.) 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q65 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q66 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

Page 109



 
Q67 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q68 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q69 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q70 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q71 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the Area Manager to convene as a matter of urgency, a meeting between 
resident representatives at Labre Park, representatives from BTAP, the chair of the 
LTACC and the Gardaí regarding an increase in antisocial behaviour. 

Reply 
The Traveller Accommodation Unit organised a meeting relating to the above issue to 
take place  on Thursday 15th February 2018 and Monday 19th February 2018, in the 
Ground Floor Conference Room, Ballyfermot Community Civic Centre, Ballyfermot, 
Dublin 10. 
 
Contact: Pat Teehan, Administrative Officer, Traveller Accommodation Unit 
Tel: 222 2283 
Email: pat.teehan@dublincity.ie  
 

Q72 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask TAG to report on the feasibility of introducing pedestrian lights at Herberton 
Bridge in Rialto. 

Reply 
The Senior Executive Engineer, Roads and Traffic Planning, has reported that the 
upgrade of the junction of Herberton Road and Dolphin Road is included in the 
proposals for the Grand Canal Cycle Route and will be funded by the National 
Transport Authority.  This scheme includes the provision of a toucan crossing at this 
location to cater for both pedestrians and cyclists crossing the bridge.  This project is 
on hold at present due to funding constraints. 
 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer, Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 

Page 110

mailto:pat.teehan@dublincity.ie
mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie


 
Q73 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager for an update on the offer to purchase Kilmainham Mill 
recently made by the Council. 

Reply 
The Chief Valuer’s offer is still under consideration.  
 
Contact: Oliver Hickey, Administrative Officer, Property Disposal Section 
Tel: 222 3055 
Email: oliver.hickey@dublincity.ie 
 

Q74 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the Area Manager for an update on the development of a park at Bridgefoot 
street. 
 
Reply 
Detail design is ongoing and a tender package is due to be reviewed in the coming 

 weeks. It is hoped that a tender for construction of the park will be issued in Q2 with 
 construction commencing shortly after the tender process is complete. 

 
Contact: Peter Leonard, Executive Landscape Architect 
Tel: 222 3805 
Email: parks@dublincity.ie 
 
 
 

Page 111

mailto:oliver.hickey@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Meeting held on 21st February 2018
	Minutes
	3 South Central Area Matters

	2 Questions to the South Central Area Manager
	4 Roads & Traffic Matters
	Status Report March

	5 South Central Area Matters
	Report Naming site rear 486 Bluebell Ave
	Map for rear 486 Bluebell Avenue
	Report naming site at Kylemore Rd
	Map for site at Kylemore Rd
	Gully cleaning

	6 Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services
	Sports Report

	7 Planning and Economic Development Matters
	Map  for Davitt Road
	Disposal of Sarsfield Road CIE
	Disposal CIE Map Sarsfield Road Dublin 10

	10 February Questions and Answers



